
 
1 of  3 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MONDAY, AUGUST 20, 2018 
7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 
 
 

A. Call to Order by the Mayor. 
 

B. Roll Call. 
 

C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 6, 2018. 
 

D. Agenda Revisions. 
 

E. Administration of Oath to Public Safety Officers and Reserve Officers. 
 

F. Special Order of Business: 
 
1. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 

Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel Project. 
 
a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published August 10, 2018) 

 
b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk. 

 
c. Oral comments. 

 
2. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for 

the Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel Project. 
 

3. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 
2018 Seal Coat Project. 
 
a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published August 10, 2018) 

 
b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk. 

 
c. Oral comments. 

 
4. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for 

the 2018 Seal Coat Project. 
 

G. Old Business: 
 
1. Pass Ordinance #2928, amending Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 

butchering and disposal of dead animals, upon its third & final consideration. 
 

2. Pass Ordinance #2929, amending Chapter 29, Zoning, and Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to the City's floodplain regulations, upon its second consideration. 
 



 
2 of  3 

 

3. Pass Ordinance #2930, rezoning property located generally on Lots 7 & 8 of the Midway Business 
Park Addition pursuant to provisions of a Zoning Agreement associated with Ordinance #2080, 
which placed said property in the R-4 Residential Zoning District, upon its second consideration. 
 

H. New Business: 
 
1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without 

separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be 
considered separately.) 
 
a. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of August 6, 2018 relative to the 

following items: 
(1) Downtown ordinance revisions related to building design review.  
(2) Bills & Payrolls. 
 

b. Receive and file the Administration Committee minutes of July 23, 2018. 
 

c. Receive and file the report of the July 23, 2018 Joint Meeting of the City Council & the 
Utilities Board of Trustees. 
 

d. Receive and file the bid received for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9. 
 

e. Approve the following special event related requests:  
(1) Street closure, West 25th Street, August 26, 2018. 
(2) Street closures, ARTapalooza, September 8, 2018. 
(3) Street closures & parking variance, Friends of Western Home Communities Annual 
Breakfast & Family Fun, September 8, 2018. 
(4) Street closure, West 25th Street, September 22, 2018. 
(5) Street/parking lot closures & parking variances, UNI Homecoming activities, October 19-
20, 2018. 
 

f. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
(1) Main Street Sweets, 210 Main Street, Class B native wine - renewal. 
(2) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
(3) The Other Place, 4214 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
(4) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(5) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
(6) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class E liquor - change in ownership. 
(7) Jorgensen Plaza (Table 1912, Diamond Event Center and Gilmore's Pub), 5307 Caraway 
Lane, Class C liquor - adding outdoor service. 
(8) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor - temporary outdoor service. 
(August 25-26, 2018) 
 

2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion 
without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific 
item be considered separately.) 
 
a. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Understanding with the 

City of Waterloo and Black Hawk County relative to the 2018-2019 Edward Byrne Memorial 
Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) funding for the Tri-County Drug Enforcement Task Force. 
 

b. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a First Year Extension of an Agreement 
for Custodial Services with T & C Cleaning, Inc. relative to custodial services for city 
buildings for a period of September 1, 2018 through August 31, 2019. 
 



 
3 of  3 

 

c. Resolution approving the partial release of retainage funds to K. Cunningham Construction 
Company, Inc. for the University Avenue Reconstruction Project, Phase I. 
 

d. Resolution approving and accepting the bid of Feldman Concrete, in the amount of 
$38,923.88, for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9. 
 

e. Resolution approving final occupancy of the Aldrich Elementary School prior to the 
acceptance of the public improvements in McMahill First Addition. 
 

f. Resolution approving and authorizing Change Order No. 1 to the contract with Iowa Bridge & 
Culvert, LC for the 2017 Levee/Floodwall System Improvements Project. 
 

g. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Development Agreement with JDavis 
Properties, L.L.C., and approving an S-1 Zoning District site plan for the redevelopment of a 
building located at 6607 University Avenue. 
 

h. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment to Agreement for Private 
Development with BAJR Enterprises, L.L.C. relative to commencement and completion 
dates. 
 

i. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to the City's Low Rent Housing Agency 
Administrative Plan. 
 

j. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment to Restrictions Agreement 
with Tindall Enterprises, LLC (f/n/a BlackHawk Hotel, L.L.C.), Eagle View Hospitality LC and 
Main Street Hotels LC relative to transfer of ownership, and approving and authorizing 
execution of a Subordination Agreement relative to a Forgivable Mortgage and Promissory 
Note, in conjunction with the Multi-Family (Rental) Unit Production - New Construction 
Program, Round 6. 
 

k. Resolution approving and authorizing a change order to a Rehabilitation Contract with Kirvan 
Enterprises LLC relative to a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) housing 
rehabilitation project at 1622 Clay Street. 
 

l. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property 
located at 1509 Franklin Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion 
Incentive Program. 
 

m. Resolution setting September 4, 2018 as the date of public hearing on proposed 
amendments to Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to design guidelines 
in the Central Business District Overlay Zoning District. 
 

I. Allow Bills and Payroll. 
 

J. City Council Referrals. 
 

K. City Council Updates. 
 

L. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to 
City business.) 
 

M. Adjournment. 
 

 
 



 



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AUGUST 6, 2018 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, pursuant 
to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member thereof, in the 
City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Absent: None. 

 
51973 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Wieland that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of July 16, 2018 and Special Meeting of July 23, 2018 be approved as 
presented and ordered of record. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Mayor Brown read a proclamation declaring August 2018 as Gastroparesis 
Awareness Month and Nikki Morrissey commented. 

 
51974 - Controller/City Treasurer Roeding announced that Item G-2.f. was being removed 

from the Resolution Calendar. 
 
51975 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 20, 2018, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment 
Project, Zone 9. It was then moved by Wieland and seconded by Blanford that the 
proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
51976 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 

plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written objections on file, the 
Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer Resler commented briefly. There 
being no one else present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed plans, 
etc., the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of 
business. 

 
51977 -  It was moved by Green and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,210, approving 

and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 
2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call 
of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,210 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51978 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 26, 2018, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on an associated amendment to the 
Schematic Land Use Map by changing the designation from High Density 
Residential to Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed Use, and also on the proposed 
rezoning from R-3, Multiple Unit Residential, to C-3, High Density Commercial, of 
property located at 1015 & 1021 West 22nd Street. It was then moved by Wieland 
and seconded by Green that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received 
and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

-1-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

 
51979 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the amendment 

and rezoning. Upon being advised that there was one written comment on file, the 
Mayor then called for oral comments. Community Services Manager Howard 
provided a brief presentation and explanation.  

 
 The following individuals spoke opposed to the amendment and rezoning: 
  Tim Schilling, 3434 Tucson Drive 
  Eashaan Vajpeyi, Attorney with Ball, Kirk & Holm, P.C., 3831 Convair Lane 
  Doug Sires, 1937 College Street 
  Randy Chapman, 703 Union Road 
 
 The following individuals spoke in support of the amendment and rezoning: 

  Dan Drendel, Slingshot Architecture, 305 East Court Avenue, Des Moines, Iowa 
  James Kerns, 3123 Cottonwood Lane 
 

 There being no one else present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed 
amendment and rezoning, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the 
next order of business. 

 
51980 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Wieland that Resolution #21,211, 

amending the Schematic Land Use Map, by changing the designation from High 
Density Residential to Neighborhood Commercial/Mixed Use, for property located at 
1015 & 1021 West 22nd Street, be adopted. Following comments by 
Councilmembers Wieland, Blanford, Darrah and Green, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: deBuhr and Kruse. Motion 
Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,211 duly passed and adopted. 
 

51981 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Green that an ordinance amending 
Section 29-107 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property located at 1015 & 
1021 West 22nd Street from the R-3, Multiple Unit Residential Zoning District and 
placing the same in the C-3, High Density Commercial Zoning District, be passed 
upon its first consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: deBuhr 
and Kruse. Motion failed due to lack of receiving at least six (3/4) aye votes. 

 
51982 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 26, 2018, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed amendments to 
Chapter 29, Zoning, and Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
the City's floodplain regulations. It was then moved by Miller and seconded by Green 
that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

51983 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 
amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written objections on file, the 
Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner III Sturch commented briefly. There 
being no one else present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed 
amendments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of 
business. 

-2-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 
51984 -   It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2929, amending 

Chapter 29, Zoning, and Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
the City's floodplain regulations, be passed upon its first consideration. Following 
due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
 

51985 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 26, 2018, 
this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed amendments to the 
Zoning Agreement relative to conditions of the R-4 Residential Zoning District for 
property described as Lots 7 & 8 of Midway Business Park. It was then moved by 
Darrah and seconded by Miller that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

51986 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 
amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written objections on file, the 
Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner III Sturch commented briefly. There 
being no one else present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed 
amendments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of 
business. 

 
51987 -  It was moved by Green and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,212, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Zoning Agreement Amendment relative to 
property located generally on Lots 7 & 8 of the Midway Business Park Addition, be 
adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers deBuhr and Darrah, and 
responses by Community Services Manager Howard and Planner III Sturch, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,212 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
51988 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Blanford that Ordinance #2930, rezoning 

property located generally on Lots 7 & 8 of the Midway Business Park Addition 
pursuant to provisions of a Zoning Agreement associated with Ordinance #2080, 
which placed said property in the R-4 Residential Zoning District, be passed upon its 
first consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
 

51989 -   It was moved by Miller and seconded by Green that Ordinance #2928, amending 
Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances relative to butchering and disposal of 
dead animals, be passed upon its second consideration. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call 
of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
51990 - It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Miller that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

-3-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of July 16, 2018. 
 
Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of June 2018. 
 
Receive and file the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 
Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel Project. 
 
Receive and file the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 
2018 Seal Coat Project. 
 
Approve the application of Western Home Communities (Flashing Thunder 
Fireworks) for a fireworks display permit for September 8, 2018. 
 
Approve the following special event related requests: 
 (1) Closure of a Municipal Lot located at 217 Washington Street, FondoFest Pre-

Party, August 17, 2018. 
 (2) Street closure, College Street, August 17-18, 2018. 
 (3) Street closure, Timber Drive, August 19, 2018. 
 (4) Closure of a portion of Municipal Lot G, Pear Fair, September 14-16, 2018. 
 (5) Street closure, Green Creek Road, September 16, 2018. 
 
Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
 (1) Vintage Iron, 104 Main Street, Class B native wine - renewal. 
 (2) Casey's General Store, 2425 Center Street, Class C beer & Class B native wine 

- renewal. 
 (3) Casey's General Store, 5226 University Avenue, Class C beer & Class B native 

wine - renewal. 
 (4) King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street, Class C beer & Class B native wine - renewal. 
 (5) Amigo, 5809 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
 (6) Octopus, 2205 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
 (7) The Library, 2222 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
 (8) B & B West, 3105 Hudson Road, Class E liquor - renewal. 
 (9) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class E liquor - renewal. 
 (10) Mulligan's Brick Oven Grill & Pub, 205 East 18th Street, Class C liquor & 

outdoor service - change in ownership. 
 (11) The Black Hawk Hotel, The Stuffed Olive, 115-119 Main Street, Class B liquor 

& outdoor service - new. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

51991 -  It was moved by Green and seconded by Darrah to amend the Committee of the 
Whole minutes of July 16, 2018 to reflect correct spelling of the last name Kiani and 
to list the public speaker name as Mark G. Miller to differentiate from Councilmember 
Miller. Motion to amend carried unanimously.  

 
It was then moved by Miller and seconded by Green to receive and file the 
Committee of the Whole minutes of July 16, 2018, as amended, relative to the 
following items: 
 (1) Review Code Section 14-149 - Parking Hard Surfacing Requirements. 
 (2) Levee Update. 

     (3) Bills & Payroll. 

-4-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

 
    Motion carried unanimously. 
 
51992 -  It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,213, naming official depositories for the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
Resolution #21,214, approving and adopting the recommendation of the Community 
Center & Senior Services Board relative to a Community Center Rental Fee 
Schedule. 

 
Resolution #21,215, approving the Pinnacle Ridge 2nd Minor Subdivision Plat, a 
replat of Parcels M and N, Pinnacle Ridge Minor Subdivision Plat. 
 
Resolution #21,216, approving a Highway Corridor and Greenbelt (HCG) Overlay 
Zoning District site plan for construction of a restaurant on Lot 1 of East Viking Plaza 
Addition. 

 
Resolution #21,217, approving and authorizing execution of a Lease with FN 
Investors, L.L.C. for temporary use of Lot 13, West Viking Road Industrial Park, 
relative to private development of adjacent property. 
 
Resolution #21,218, approving and authorizing submission of a Resource 
Enhancement and Protection (REAP) Grant Application for the Clay Street Park 
Water Quality Improvements Project. 

 
Resolution #21,219, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 8 with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. relative to the Downtown 
Levee Improvements Project. 
 

  Resolution #21,220, setting August 20, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Cedar 
Falls Public Library Remodel Project. 
 
Resolution #21,221, setting August 20, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Seal 
Coat Project. 
 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,213 through #21,221 duly passed and 
adopted. 

 
51993 -   It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Green that Resolution #21,222, 

approving and authorizing expenditure of funds for a consultant to develop concepts 
and cost estimates for potential improvements to Pettersen Plaza, be adopted. 
Following a question by Councilmember deBuhr and response by Municipal 
Operations and Programs Director Ripplinger, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 

-5-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,222 duly passed and adopted. 

 
51994 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Wieland that the bills and payrolls be 

allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be authorized to issue 
City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in payment of the same. 
Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
51995 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah to refer to the Committee of the 

Whole the review of urban chickens. Following comments and questions by 
Councilmembers Wieland, Green and Blanford, the motion to refer carried 4-3, with 
deBuhr, Blanford and Wieland voting nay. 

 
51996 -  Councilmember Green announced the 35th Annual ‘National Nite Out’ on August 7, 

2018, and Public Safety Services Director Olson provided a mid-year update on 
Public Safety statistics, showing a 3.67% decline in crime and having three 
additional officers on average reporting to fires. 

 
51997 - It was moved by Green and seconded by Wieland to adjourn to Executive Session to 

evaluate the performance of the City Administrator pursuant to Iowa Code Section 
21.5(1)(i), following Public Forum. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
51998 - Brent Dahlstrom, 5016 Samantha Circle, provided statistics of current home sales 

and the need for urban core growth in Cedar Falls, and requested clarification of 
zoning ordinances.  

  
Penny Poppe, 4805 South Main Street, expressed appreciation for public safety 
response to a recent fire in her neighborhood. 

 
Jeremy Sulentic, 1008 Rocklyn Street, commented on fire suppression policies and 
the fire that destroyed their home in 2017. 

  
 The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:02 P.M. 
 

Mayor Brown reconvened the Council Meeting at 9:17 P.M. and stated that 
Personnel Matters had been discussed but that no further action was required at this 
time. 

 
51999 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse that the meeting be adjourned at 9:18 

P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

-6-

Item C. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Building Inspections Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jamie Castle, Building Official 
 
 DATE: July 30, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel 
   Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs for the Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel. 
 
I would recommend setting Monday, August 20, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time 
for the public hearing on this project and Thursday, August 30, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. as the 
date and time for receiving and opening bids. I would also request that the Notice to 
Bidders be published by August 10, 2018. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for 
distribution to contractors on August 6, 2018 allowing more than two (2) weeks of review 
before contract letting. 
 
This project involves renovation and construction of a new co-lab on the 2nd floor of the 
Public Library.  It will provide space for patrons to learn about and work on various 
hobby projects. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $151,000.00. The Library 
has been awarded a gaming grant to pay for a portion of the cost of this project. 
 

The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs are available for your review at the 
City Clerk's office or the Building Division of the Community Development Department. 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jay Robinson, Library Director 
 Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business 
 Craig Witry, Building Official 

-7-

Item F.1. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 2, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Seal Coat Project 
  City Project Number SC-000-3163 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
  
 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2018 Seal Coat Project. 
 
I would recommend setting Monday, August 20th, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and 
time for the Public Hearing on this project and Tuesday, August 28th at 2:00 p.m. as the 
date and time for receiving and opening bids. 
 
This project will resurface portions of eleven (11) street sections, one (1) driveway 
totaling 2.80 mi., covering 38,764 S.Y.; and 16,288 S.Y. at multiple single lane drives 
within two (2) cemeteries and at the North Shore Boat Club. This will include the 
placement and compaction of the surface and placement of any required pavement 
markings.  A detailed list of locations is included in the project specifications. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $145,122.04 with funding 
from the Local Option Sales Tax. 
 
The Plans, Specifications and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your 
review at the City Clerk’s office or the Engineering Division of the Community 
Development Department. 
  
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development  
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 

-9-

Item F.3. 



 



-11-

Item F.3. 



 



Prepared by:  Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  2928 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 6-14, BUTCHERING OF ANIMALS 
PROHBITED, IN ARTICLE I, GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 6, ANIMALS, OF THE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO CONFORM SAID 
SECTION TO SECTION 19-15 REGARDING AREAS DESIGNATED FOR HUNTING 
WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

               Section 1.  Section 6-14, Butchering of Animals Prohibited, of Article I, in General, of 
Chapter 6, Animals, is hereby repealed in its entirety and a new Section 6-14, Butchering of 
Animals Prohibited is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 6-14. – Butchering of animals prohibited. 

Except as authorized in Section 19-15, no person shall within the city limits slaughter, butcher or 
process any animal or fowl on public property or, within the sensory perception of any person 
not on the same premises, on private property.  Any remains must be disposed of in a sanitary 
manner and in accordance with the law.  Field dressing by authorized hunters of animals and 
fowl slaughtered in the areas designated for hunting in Section 19-15 shall be allowed in those 
areas. 

INTRODUCED:     July 16, 2018    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   July 16, 2018    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   August 6, 2018   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI:       

ADOPTED:          

 
 
                                                                                              ______________________ 
                                                                                                James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-13-

Item G.1. 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared By: David Sturch, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 273-8600 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2929 
 

AN ORDINANCE (1) REPEALING SECTION 29-2, DEFINITIONS, OF ARTICLE I, 
IN GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 29, ZONING, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF  
NEW SUBSECTIONS (1) AND (2), DEFINITIONS, OF SAID SECTION 29-2; AND 
(2) REPEALING SUBSECTION (16) OF SUBSECTION (e), PERFORMANCE 
STANDARDS, OF SECTION 29-156, F-F, FLOODWAY FRINGE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT, OF DIVISION 2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS 
AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 29, ZONING, AND ENACTING IN 
LIEU THEREOF A NEW SUBSECTION (16) SUBSECTION (e), PERFORMANCE 
STANDARDS, OF SAID SECTION 29-156; AND (3) THE DEFINITION OF BASE 
FLOOD ELEVATION IN SECTION 27-114 OF ARTICLE III, STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT PROGRAM OF CHAPTER 27 UTILITIES AND ENACTING IN 
LIEU A NEW DEFINITION OF BASE FLOOD ELEVATION OF SAID SECTION 
27-114, ALL OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA. 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1. Section 29-2, Definitions, of Article I, In General, of Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in their entirety and new subsections 
(1) and (2) of said Section 29-2, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

 
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning. 
The word "used" or "occupied" includes the words "intended, designed or arranged to be used 
or occupied." 

(1) General Zoning Definitions. 
 
Access drive means a driveway or easement allowing access to a lot not having frontage 
upon a street. 
 
Accessory use or structure means a use or structure on the same lot with and of a nature 
customarily incidental and subordinate to the principal use or structure. Said accessory 

-15-

Item G.2. 



2 
 

structures are customarily used for storage or parking purposes. No residential dwelling 
unit or business or commercial office may be established within an accessory structure. 

Administrator means the federal insurance administrator, to whom the secretary has 
delegated the administration of the program. 

Alley means a public way, other than a street, 20 feet or less in width, affording a secondary 
means of access to abutting property. 

Apartment hotel means a building containing both dwelling units and rooming units, used 
primarily for permanent occupancy. 

Assessed value means the assessed value for general property tax purposes of a property as 
established by the Assessor of Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

Bed and breakfast enterprises is synonymous with lodging house or guest lodging 
and means any building or portion thereof containing not more than five guest rooms for 
which compensation is received for short-term overnight lodging. 

Bed and breakfast inn is synonymous with hotel, and means a lodging establishment 
containing six or more guest rooms. 

Boardinghouse means a building other than a hotel or other overnight lodging facility 
where, for compensation, lodging and meals are provided by the building owners or 
managers for resident boarders with meals for all resident boarders provided in a central 
kitchen facility within said building. Residents within said boardinghouse facility shall be 
accommodated with weekly, monthly, or yearly tenant agreements or leases. 

Building means all residential housing, cabins, factories, warehouses, storage sheds and 
other walled or roofed structures constructed for occupancy by people or animals or for 
storage of materials. 

Building, height of means the vertical distance from grade to the highest point of any roof 
ridge. 

Building line means a line on a plat of official record indicating the minimum distance of 
open space that must be maintained between the property line and any structure on the lot. 

Building setback (see Yard) means the minimum required area of unobstructed open space 
on a lot measured from the property line. 

Carport means a roofed structure providing space for the parking of motor vehicles and 
enclosed on not more than two sides. A carport attached to a principal building shall be 
considered as part of the principal building and subject to all yard requirements in this 
chapter. 

Clinic means a building used by physicians or dentists, osteopaths, chiropractors and allied 
professions for outpatient care of persons requiring such professional service. 

-16-

Item G.2. 



3 
 

Day nursery or nursery school means any private agency, institution, establishment or 
place which provides supplemental parental care or educational work, other than lodging 
overnight, to more than 12 children. 

Development means any manmade change to improved or unimproved real estate, including 
but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, 
excavation or drilling operations. 

Driveway, commercial means an improved area that is designed and intended to provide 
vehicular ingress and egress from a public street or public alley to and across a private 
property. It provides access to facilities on the private property including parking lots, 
garages, warehouses or business sites. Commercial driveways may cross property lines to 
access multiple businesses when specifically permitted by the city. 

Driveway, hard surface means a paved area, as defined in article VI, of chapter 23, of this 
Code. It does not include gravel or granular surface materials. 

Driveway, residential means an improved area that is designed and intended or used to 
provide vehicular ingress and egress from a public street or public alley to and across a 
private property. Driveways shall be entirely paved with a hard surface material. Driveways 
may provide off-street parking for dwellings and access to garages, parking areas and 
parking lots, when these facilities are specifically permitted. See section 29-179 for 
additional regulations. 

Dwelling means any building or portion thereof which is designed or used exclusively for 
residential purposes, but not including a tent, cabin or travel trailer. 

Dwelling, condominium means a multiple dwelling whereby the fee title to each dwelling 
unit is held independently of the others. 

Dwelling, multiple means a residence designed for or occupied by three or more families, 
with separate housekeeping and cooking facilities for each. 

Dwelling, row means any one of three or more attached dwellings in a continuous row, 
each such dwelling designed and erected as a unit on a separate lot, and separated from one 
another by an approved wall. 

Dwelling, single-family means a detached residence designed for or occupied by one family 
only. 

Dwelling, single-family bi-attached means a dwelling designed for or occupied by one 
family only which is erected on a separate lot and is joined to another such residence on 
one side only by a wall located on the lot line and which has yards on the remaining sides. 

Dwelling, two-family means a residence designed for or occupied by two families only, 
with separate housekeeping and cooking facilities for each. 

Dwelling unit means a room or group of rooms which is arranged, designed or used as 
living quarters for the occupancy of one family, containing bathroom or kitchen facilities. 

-17-

Item G.2. 



4 
 

Factory-built home park means a parcel or contiguous parcels of land divided into two or 
more factory-built housing lots for rent or sale. 

Factory-built housing means any structure, designed for residential use, which is wholly or 
in substantial part made, fabricated, formed or assembled in manufacturing facilities for 
installation or assembly and installation on a building site. Factory-built housing includes 
mobile homes, manufactured homes and modular homes and also includes park trailers and 
other similar vehicles placed on a site for greater than 180 consecutive days. 

Factory-built structure means any structure which is, wholly or in substantial part, made, 
fabricated, formed or assembled in manufacturing facilities for installation, or assembly 
and installation, on a building site. 

Fair market value means the dollar amount a person would be willing but not obligated to 
accept, and a buyer would be willing but not compelled to pay, for an item of sale. It is an 
estimate of what is a fair, economic, just and equitable value under normal local market 
conditions. In appropriate circumstances this may be the assessed value of the property. 

Family means one or more persons occupying a single dwelling unit, provided that, unless 
all members are related by blood, marriage or adoption, no such family shall contain over 
four persons. 

Family day care home means an occupied residence in which a person provides 
supplemental parental care or educational work, other than lodging overnight, to more than 
six but not more than 12 children. 

Floor area ratio means the gross floor area of all buildings on a lot, divided by the lot area 
on which the buildings are located. 

Garage, private means an enclosed structure intended for the parking of the private motor 
vehicle of the families resident upon the premises. 

Gasoline filling station means any building or premises used for: 

(1)  The retail sale of liquefied petroleum products for the propulsion of motor vehicles, 
including sale of such products as kerosene, fuel oil, package naphtha, lubricants, 
tires, batteries, antifreeze, motor vehicle accessories and other items customarily 
associated with the sale of such products; 

(2)  The rendering of services and making of adjustments and replacements to motor 
vehicles, and the washing, waxing and polishing of motor vehicles, as incidental to 
other services rendered; and 

(3)  The making of repairs to motor vehicles, except those of a major type. Repairs of a 
major type are defined to be spray painting, body, fender, clutch, transmission, 
differential, axle, spring and frame repairs, major overhauling of engines requiring 
the removal of the engine cylinder head or crankcase pan, repairs to radiators 
requiring the removal thereof, or complete recapping or retreading of tires. 

 
Group home means a community-based residential home which is licensed as a residential 
care facility or an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded under I.C.A. ch. 135C 
or as a child foster care facility under I.C.A. ch. 237 to provide room and board, personal 
care, habilitation services and supervision in a family environment exclusively for 

-18-

Item G.2. 



5 
 

handicapped persons, as defined in section 3602(f) of the Fair Housing Amendments Act, 
and any necessary support personnel. However, group home does not mean an individual 
foster care family home licensed under I.C.A. ch. 237. 

Guest room means a room that is intended, arranged or designed to be occupied by no more 
than three guests, but in which no mechanical provision is made for cooking, heating or 
cooling of food or beverages. 

Historic structure means a structure that is: 

(a) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained 
by the Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of 
Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National Register. 

(b) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of Interior as contributing to 
the historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily 
determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district; 

(c) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic 
places in states with historic preservation programs which has been approved by the 
Secretary of Interior; or 

(d) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with 
historic preservation programs that have been certified either: 
1. By an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of Interior or 
2. Directly by the Secretary of Interior in states without approved programs. 

 
Home occupation means a secondary use carried on entirely within the residence where 
there is no evidence of such occupation being conducted on the premises by virtue of 
outside storage, displays, noise, odors, electrical disturbances or traffic generation, with no 
more than one nonresident assistant and where not more than one-half of the floor area of 
any one floor is devoted to such use. Only one nameplate shall be allowed. 

Hotel means a building in which lodging is provided and offered to the public for 
compensation, and which is open to transient guests, in contradistinction to a 
boardinghouse or roominghouse. 

Junkyard means any area where waste, discarded or salvaged materials are bought, sold, 
exchanged, baled or packed, disassembled, kept, stored or handled, including house 
wrecking yards, used lumber yards and places or yards for storage of salvaged house 
wrecking and structural steel materials and equipment; but not including areas where such 
uses are conducted entirely within a completely enclosed building, and not including 
automobile, tractor or machinery wrecking and used parts yards and the processing of used, 
discarded or salvaged materials as part of manufacturing operations, and not including 
contractors' storage yards. 

Kennel means any premises on which four or more dogs or four or more cats, six months 
old or older, are kept. The term shall not include a veterinary hospital. 

Landscape area means that area of private property maintained as open or "green" space, 
not subject to vehicular traffic, which consists of living landscape material. 

-19-

Item G.2. 



6 
 

Lot means a parcel of land of at least sufficient size to meet minimum zoning requirements 
for use, coverage and area to provide such yards and other open space as are required in 
this chapter. No portion of an established floodway area lying within a lot or any access 
drive through a property shall be used in computing the number of dwelling units to be 
constructed. Such lot shall have frontage on a public street or private street and may consist 
of: 

(1) A single lot of record; 
(2) A portion of a lot of record; 
(3) A combination of complete lots of record, of complete lots of record and portions of 

lots of record, or of portions of lots of record; and 
(4) A parcel of land described by metes and bounds; 

provided that in no case of division or combination shall any residual lot or parcel be 
created which does not meet the requirements of this chapter. 

Lot, corner means a lot abutting upon two or more streets at their intersection. 

Lot depth means the mean horizontal distance between the front and rear lot lines. 

Lot, double frontage means a lot having a frontage on two nonintersecting streets, as 
distinguished from a corner lot. 

Lot, interior means a lot other than a corner lot. 

Lot lines means the lines bounding a lot. 

Lot of record means a lot which is a part of a subdivision recorded in the office of the 
county recorder, or a lot or parcel described by metes and bounds, the description of which 
has been so recorded. 

Lot, reversed frontage means a corner lot, the side street line of which is substantially a 
continuation of the front line of the first platted lot to its rear. 
 

 

 

 

 

Lot width means the width of a lot measured at the building line and at right angles to its 
depth. 

Main body means that portion of a dwelling encompassed by the exterior walls as originally 
assembled or built. When a dwelling is irregularly shaped, the main body shall be construed 
as that portion of the structure occupying the majority of geometric bulk. 

Manufactured home means a factory-built single-family structure, which is manufactured 
or constructed under the authority of 42 USC section 5403, Federal Manufactured Home 

 

-20-

Item G.2. 



7 
 

Construction and Safety Standards, and is to be used as a place for human habitation, but 
which is not constructed with a permanent hitch or other device allowing it to be moved 
other than for the purpose of moving to a permanent site, and which does not have 
permanently attached to its body or frame any wheels or axles. A mobile home is not a 
manufactured home unless it has been converted to real property and is taxed as a site-built 
dwelling. Manufactured homes shall be considered the same as any site-built single-family 
detached dwelling. 

Mini-storage warehouses means a building or group of buildings in a controlled access and 
fenced compound that contains varying sizes of individual compartmentalized stalls or 
lockers for the storage of customers' goods or wares. 

Mobile home means any vehicle without motive power used or so manufactured or 
constructed as to permit its being used as a conveyance upon the public streets and 
highways, and so designed, constructed or reconstructed as will permit the vehicle to be 
used as a place for human habitation by one or more persons; but shall also include any 
such vehicle with motive power not registered as a motor vehicle in the state. A mobile 
home is factory-built housing built on a chassis. A mobile home shall not be construed to 
be a travel trailer or other form of recreational vehicle. A mobile home shall be construed 
to remain a mobile home, subject to all regulations applying thereto, whether or not wheels, 
axles, hitch or other appurtenances of mobility are removed and regardless of the nature of 
the foundation provided. However, certain mobile homes may be classified as 
manufactured homes. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed as permitting a mobile 
home in other than an approved mobile home park, unless such mobile home is classified as 
a manufactured home. 

Mobile home accessory building or structure means any awning, cabana, ramada, storage 
structure or carport, fence, windbreak or porch established for the use of the occupants of 
the mobile home on a mobile home space. 

Mobile home space means a designated portion of the mobile home park designed for the 
accommodation of one mobile home and for its accessory buildings or structures for the 
exclusive use of the occupant. 

Modular home means factory-built housing certified as meeting the Iowa State Building 
Code as applicable to modular housing. Once certified by the state, modular homes shall be 
subject to the same standards as site-built homes. 

Nursing or convalescent home means a building or structure having accommodations and 
where care is provided for invalid, infirm, aged, convalescent or physically disabled or 
injured persons, not including insane and other mental cases, inebriates or contagious cases. 

Parking area means that portion of a parcel of land that is improved and designated or 
commonly used for the parking of one or more motor vehicles. 

Parking lot means an area improved and designated or commonly used for the parking of 
three or more motor vehicles. 

Parking space, also Parking stall means an area measuring at least nine feet wide and 19 
feet long for all commercial, institutional, or manufacturing uses or eight feet wide and 18 
feet long for residential uses only, connected to a public street or alley by a driveway not 

-21-

Item G.2. 



8 
 

less than ten feet wide, and so arranged as to permit ingress and egress of motor vehicles 
without moving any other vehicle parked adjacent to the parking space. 

Permanent storage means the volume of water which is stored upstream from a dam or in 
an impoundment up to the level of the principal outlet works of the structure, usually 
expressed in acre-feet. 

Porch, unenclosed means a roofed projection which has no more than 50 percent of each 
outside wall area enclosed by a building or siding material other than meshed screens. 

Principal use means the main use of land or structures, as distinguished from an accessory 
use. 

Public sewer system means a municipally owned, operated and maintained sanitary sewer 
system. 

Public water supply means a municipally owned, operated and maintained water supply. 

Recreational vehicle means a vehicle built on a single chassis; 400 square feet or less when 
measured at the largest horizontal projection; designed to be self-propelled or permanently 
towable by a light duty truck; and designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling 
but as temporary living quarters for recreational camping, travel, or seasonal use. 

Roominghouse means an owner-occupied or manager-occupied single dwelling unit 
wherein individual sleeping rooms are provided to not less than three unrelated resident 
tenants. Not more than one kitchen facility shall be established within said structure 
wherein meals may be prepared by resident tenants. Said rooming or boarding facility shall 
be distinctive from transient lodging facilities such as hotels, beds and breakfasts, other 
overnight lodging facilities or public eateries. Residents within said roominghouse facility 
shall be accommodated with weekly, monthly, or yearly tenant agreements or leases. 

Satellite receiving dish means a device whose purpose is to receive communication or other 
signals from orbiting satellites and other extraterrestrial sources, most often comprised of 
an antenna/dish, a low-noise amplifier, and a coaxial cable whose purpose is to carry the 
signals to a receiver. 

Site coverage ratio means that proportion of the lot on which buildings and outdoor storage 
of materials and products may be placed. 

Special Exception Permit means an authorization by the City Board of Adjustment to allow 
building improvements or other development when such project conforms with specified 
rules, regulations and/or performance standards required for said improvements or 
development in special areas of the City as identified by the Zoning Ordinance. 

Story means that portion of a building included between the surface of any floor and the 
surface of the floor next above it, or, if there is no floor above it, then the space between 
the floor and the ceiling or roof next above it. 

Story, half means a space under a sloping roof which has the line of intersection of roof 
decking and wall face not more than four feet above the top floor level. 

-22-

Item G.2. 



9 
 

Street line means the right-of-way line of a street. 

Street, private means any private way 20 feet or more in width which is approved by the 
city council after recommendation by the city planning and zoning commission. 

Street, public means any thoroughfare or public way not less than 30 feet in width which 
has been dedicated to the public or deeded to the city for street purposes, and also any such 
public way as may be created after enactment of this chapter, provided it is 40 feet or more 
in width. 

Structural alterations means any replacement or changes in the type of construction or in 
the supporting members of a building, such as bearing walls or partitions, columns, beams 
or girders, beyond ordinary repairs and maintenance. 

Structure means anything constructed or erected on the ground or attached to the ground, 
including but not limited to buildings, factories, sheds, cabins, factory-built housing, 
storage tanks and other similar uses. For zoning purposes anything, excluding fences, 
judged to be permanently affixed to the site and measuring at least 30 inches in height, as 
measured from natural grade, shall be considered a structure. 

Temporary storage means a volume of water which may be stored upstream from a dam or 
in an impoundment above the level of the principal outlet works, usually expressed in acre-
feet. 

Travel trailer means a towed recreational vehicle ranging from ten to 35 feet in length and 
a maximum of eight feet in width. 

Wind energy conversion system means a device or assemblage of devices which directly or 
indirectly converts wind energy to usable thermal, mechanical or electrical energy. 

Variance means a grant of relief by a community from the terms of the zoning ordinance. 

Violation means the failure of a structure, property, property use or other development to be 
fully compliant with City regulations. 

Yard means an open space on the same lot with a building or structure unoccupied and 
unobstructed by any portion of a structure from 30 inches above the general ground level of 
the graded lot upward. In measuring a yard for the purpose of determining the depth of a 
front yard or the depth of a rear yard, the least distance between the lot line and the main 
building shall be used. In measuring a yard for the purpose of determining the width of a 
side yard, the least distance between the lot line and the nearest permitted building shall be 
used. 

Yard, front means a yard extending across the full width of the lot and measured between 
the front lot line and the building. 

Yard, rear means a yard extending across the full width of the lot and measured between 
the rear lot line and the building or any projections other than steps, unenclosed balconies 
or unenclosed porches. On both corner lots and interior lots, the rear yard is the opposite 
end of the lot from the front yard. 

-23-

Item G.2. 



10 
 

Yard, required means that portion of the front yard, side 
yard and rear yard as established by the setback 
requirements of the zoning district or of this chapter. It 
must be maintained in open, unobstructed space as 
measured from the property line to the required setback 
line except for allowable yard encroachments as 
outlined in section 29-83. If the building structure is 
located at the required setback line, then the setback 
distance shall be measured from the property line to the 
foundation of the structure. Refer to Figure 1. 

Yard, side means a yard extending from the front yard to 
the rear yard and measured between the side lot lines 
and the nearest building. 

(2) General Floodplain Definitions. 
 

Appurtenant Structure is a structure which is on the same 
parcel of the property as the principal structure to be 
insured and the use of which is incidental to the use of the principal structure. 
 
Base Flood means the flood having a one percent (1%) chance of being equaled or 
exceeded in any given year (See 100-year (1%) flood). This is the regulatory standard 
also referred to as the "100-year flood". The base flood is the national standard used by 
the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and all Federal Agencies for the purpose 
of requiring the purchase of flood insurance and regulating new development. Base 
Flood Elevations (BFEs) are typically shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps 
(FIRMs). 
 
Base Flood Elevation is the elevation floodwaters would reach at a particular site during 
the occurrence of a base flood event. 
 
Basement means any enclosed area of a building which has its floor or lowest level 
below ground level (subgrade) on all sides. Any basement situated with less than one-
half of its height below grade shall be counted as a story for the purpose of height 
regulations. A basement having more than one-half of its height below grade is not 
included in computing the number of stories for the purpose of height measurement. 
Also see "Lowest floor." 
 
Channel means a natural or artificial watercourse having definite banks and beds with 
visible evidence of flow or occurrence of water. 
 
Development means any manmade change to improved or unimproved real estate, 
including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, 
grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations. 
 
Elevating means raising a structure or property by fill or other means to or above the 
minimum flood protection level. 
 

 
Figure 1 

-24-

Item G.2. 



11 
 

Encroachment limits means a set of lines which delineate the boundaries of the 
floodway established in the floodplains as the designated width of channel and 
overbank areas through which the regulatory flood must pass. 
 
Existing Construction is any structure for which the "start of construction" commenced 
before the effective date of the first floodplain management regulations adopted by the 
community. May also be referred to as "existing structure". 
 
Factory-Built Home Park or Subdivision, Existing is a factory-built home park or 
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the 
factory-built homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, 
the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is 
completed before the effective date of the first floodplain management regulations 
adopted by the community. 
 
Factory-Built Home Park or Subdivision, Expansion of Existing is the preparation of 
additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-
built homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the 
construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads). 
 
Factory-Built Home Park or Subdivision, New is a factory-built home park or subdivision 
for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-built 
homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the 
construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is 
completed on or after the effective date of the first floodplain management regulations 
adopted by the community. 
 
Flood means a temporary rise in the channel flow or stage, resulting from the overflow 
of streams or rivers or from the unusual and rapid runoff of surface waters from any 
source, that results in water overflowing and inundating normally dry lands adjacent to 
the channel. 
 
Flood elevation means the elevation flood-waters would reach at a particular site during 
the occurrence of a specific flood. For instance, the "100-year flood" or the "100-year 
(1%) flood" is that flood, the magnitude of which has a one percent (1%) chance of 
being equaled or exceeded in any given year. The "500-year flood" or the "500-year 
(0.2%) flood" is that flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths of one percent 
(0.2%) chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. 
 
Flood insurance rate map (FIRM) means the official map prepared as part of, but 
published separately from, the flood insurance study, which delineates both the flood 
hazard areas and the risk premium zones applicable to the community. 
 
Flood insurance study means an examination, evaluation and determination of flood 
hazards and, if appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations. 
 
Floodplain means any land susceptible to being inundated by water as a result of a 
flood. 
 

-25-

Item G.2. 



12 
 

Floodplain buildable area means that portion of the lot remaining after the minimum 
yard area requirements (i.e., setbacks) of this chapter have been met, and shall not 
include that portion of the property within the 500-year floodplain. 
 
Floodplain Management is an overall program of corrective and preventive measures for 
reducing flood damages and promoting the wise use of floodplain, including but not 
limited to emergency preparedness plans, flood control works, floodproofing and 
floodplain management regulations. 
 
Flood profile means a graph or a longitudinal profile showing the relationship of the 
water surface elevation of a flood event to a location along a stream or river. 
 
Floodproofing means a combination of structural provisions, changes or adjustments 
incorporated in the design or construction and alteration of individual buildings, 
structures or properties, including utilities, water treatment and sanitary facilities, which 
will reduce or eliminate flood damages. 
 
Floodway means the channel of a river or stream and those portions of the floodplain 
adjoining the channel which are reasonably required to carry and discharge floodwaters 
or flood flows associated with the regulatory flood, so that confinement of flood flows 
to the floodway area will not result in substantially higher flood levels and flow 
velocities. 
 
Floodway fringe means the land adjacent to a body of water between the floodway and 
the outer (landward) limits of the special flood hazard area, as defined by the regulatory 
flood as delineated on the official floodplain zoning map. 
 
Habitable space for flood protection purposes means any floor or level, including a 
basement, which is suitable for human habitation. It excludes a garage, a detached 
accessory structure, or an area for housing electrical, plumbing, heating, ventilating and 
other utility systems underneath a structure elevated to comply with flood protection 
requirements. 
 
Highest Adjacent Grade is the highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to 
construction next to the proposed walls of a structure. 
 
Lowest floor means the floor of the lowest enclosed area in a building, including a 
basement, except when all the following criteria are met: 
 
(1) The enclosed area is designed to flood to equalize hydrostatic pressure during 

floods, with walls or openings that satisfy the floodway fringe performance standard 
pertaining to new and substantially improved structures; 

(2) The enclosed area is unfinished (not carpeted, drywalled, etc.) and used solely for 
low damage potential uses such as building access, parking or storage; 

(3) Machinery and service facilities (e.g., hot water heater, furnace and electrical 
service) contained in the enclosed area are located at least one foot above the 500-
year (0.2%) flood level; and 

(4) The enclosed area is not a basement. 

-26-

Item G.2. 



13 
 

In cases where the lowest enclosed area satisfies the criteria of subsections (1), (2), (3) and 
(4) of this definition, the lowest floor is the floor of the next highest enclosed area that does 
not satisfy such criteria. 

New construction (new buildings, new mobile home parks) means those structures or 
development for which the start of construction commenced on or after February 1, 1985. 

Obstruction means any dam, wall, wharf, embankment, levee, dike, pile, abutment, 
projection, excavation, channel rectification, bridge, conduit, culvert, building, wire, fence, 
rock, gravel, refuse, fill, structure or matter in, along, across or projecting into any 
watercourse or floodplain area which may impede, retard or change the direction of the 
flow of water, either in itself or by catching or collecting debris carried by such water, or 
that is placed where the flow of water might carry material or structure downstream to the 
damage of other properties. 

Official floodplain zoning map means the maps on file with the city that indicate those 
portions of land known as the floodway, floodway fringe and general floodplain, which are 
subject to the regulations of this chapter. 

One hundred (100) year flood means a flood, the magnitude of which has a one percent 
(1%) chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year or which, on average, will be 
equaled or exceeded at least once every one hundred (100) years. 

Program means the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). 

Public damages shall consist of but not necessarily be limited to the following: 

(1) Physical flood damage to: 
a. Streets. 
b. Sewers. 
c. Water mains. 
d. Other public utilities. 
e. Public buildings. 
f. Bridges. 
g. Recreational trails. 

(2) Expenditures for: 
a. Emergency flood protection. 
b. Evacuation and relief. 
c. Rehabilitation and cleanup. 

(3) Losses due to: 
a. Interruption of utilities and transportation routes. 
b. Interruption of commerce and employment. 

 
Public sewer system means a municipally owned, operated and maintained sanitary sewer 
system. 

Reach is a hydraulic engineering term used to describe longitudinal segments of a stream or 
river. A reach will generally include the segment of the flood hazard area where flood 

-27-

Item G.2. 



14 
 

heights are primarily controlled by manmade or natural obstructions or constrictions. In an 
urban area, an example of a reach would be the segment of a stream or river between two 
consecutive bridge crossings. 

Regulatory flood means a flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths (0.2%) of one 
percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. Regulatory flood is also 
referred to in this chapter as the "500-year flood" and the "500-year (0.2%) flood." 

Repetitive Loss includes flood-related damage sustained by a structure on two separate 
occasions during a 10-year period for which the cost of repairs at the time of each such 
flood event, on the average, equals or exceeds 25 percent of the market value of the 
structure before the damage occurred. 
 
Special Exception Permit means an authorization by the City Board of Adjustment to 
allow building improvements or other development when such project conforms with 
specified rules, regulations and/or performance standards required for said 
improvements or development in special areas of the City as identified by the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) is the land within a community subject to the base 
flood. This land is identified on the community’s Flood Insurance Rate Map as Zone A, 
A1-30, AE, AH, AO, AR, A99, X Shaded and X Unshaded. 
 
Start of Construction includes substantial improvement and new construction, means the 
date the development permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement, was within 180 
days of the permit date. 
 
The actual start means either the first placement or permanent construction of a structure 
on a site, such as pouring of a slab or footings, the installation of pile, the construction of 
columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a factory-built 
home on a foundation. 
 
Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading and 
filling; nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include 
excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary 
forms; nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings such as 
garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure. 
 
For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of 
any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of the building, whether or not that 
alteration affects the external dimensions of the building. 
 
Structure means anything constructed or erected on the ground or attached to the 
ground, including but not limited to buildings, factories, sheds, cabins, factory-built 
housing, storage tanks and other similar uses. For zoning purposes anything, excluding 
fences, judged to be permanently affixed to the site and measuring at least 30 inches in 
height, as measured from natural grade, shall be considered a structure. 
 

-28-

Item G.2. 



15 
 

Substantial damage means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the 
cost of restoring the structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 
percent of the fair market value of the structure before the damage occurred. 
 
Substantial improvement means any improvement to a structure which satisfies either of 
the following criteria: 
(1) Any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition or other improvement of a structure, the 

cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the fair market value of the structure 
before the start of construction of the improvement. This term includes structures 
which have incurred repetitive loss or substantial damage, regardless of the actual 
repair work performed. The term does not, however, include either: 
a. Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state 

or local health, sanitary or safety code specifications which have been identified 
by the local code enforcement officer and which are the minimum necessary to 
ensure safe living conditions; or 

b. Any alteration to an historic structure, provided that the alteration will not 
preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure. 

(2) Any addition which increases the original floor area of a structure by 25 percent or 
more. All additions constructed after February 1, 1985, shall be added to any 
proposed addition in determining whether the total increase in original floor space 
would exceed 25 percent. The term does not, however, include either: 
a. Any project or improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state 

or local health, sanitary or safety code specifications which have been identified 
by the local code enforcement officer and which are the minimum necessary to 
ensure safe living conditions; or 

b. Any alteration which will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a 
historic structure. 

 
Temporary storage means a volume of water which may be stored upstream from a dam or 
in an impoundment above the level of the principal outlet works, usually expressed in acre-
feet. 

Section 2. Subsection (16) of subsection (e), Performance Standards, of Section 29-156, F-F, 
Floodway Fringe Overlay District, of Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District 
Regulations, of Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is  
hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new subsection (16) of subsection (e), Performance Standards, of 
Section 29-156, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

 
(e)  Performance Standards 

(16)  Detached garages, storage sheds, appurtenant structure and other similar 
detached accessory structures that are incidental to a residential use shall be 
allowed in the floodway fringe district with no minimum elevation 
requirement provided that all the following criteria are satisfied. Exemption 
from the elevation requirement for such structures may result in increased 
premium rates for flood insurance coverage of the structure and its contents: 
a. The total combined floor areas of all such structures located on the lot 

does not exceed a total of 576 square feet in area. Those portions of 
structures located less than one foot above the (0.2%) 500-year flood 
level must be constructed of flood resistant materials. 

-29-

Item G.2. 



16 
 

b. The structures are not suitable for and shall not be used for human 
habitation. 

c. The structures will be designed to have low flood damage potential and 
shall be used solely for low damage potential purposes such as vehicle 
parking and limited storage.  

d. The structures will comply with minimum required permanent openings 
as specified in subsections (d)(4)(a)(1) through (4). 

e. The structures will be constructed and placed on the building site so as to 
limit resistance to the greatest practicable extent to the flow of 
floodwaters. 

f. Structures shall be firmly anchored to prevent flotation, collapse and 
lateral movement. 

g. The structure's service facilities such as electrical, heating and ventilating 
equipment shall be elevated or floodproofed to at least one foot above the 
(.2%) 500-year flood level. 

 
Section 3. Section 27-114, the definition of base flood elevation in Section 27-114 of Article III, 

Storm Water Management Program of Chapter 27 Utilities is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 
 
Base flood elevation is the elevation elevation floodwaters would reach at a particular site 
during the occurrence of a base flood event. The base flood event shall be considered to be 
the 500-year (0.2%) flood elevation. 

 
 
 
INTRODUCED: __________________August 6, 2018_____________________ 
 
PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: ____August 6, 2018_____________________ 
 
PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: ____________________________ 
 
PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATON: ____________________________ 
 
ADOPTED: ______________________________________________ 
 
 
 

 
_____________________________ 

                                                                          James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-30-

Item G.2. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Preparer Information: David Sturch, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319) 273-8600 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2930 
 

AN ORDINANCE REZONING PROPERTY LOCATED GENERALLY ON LOTS 7 & 8 
OF THE MIDWAY BUSINESS PARK ADDITION, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF A ZONING AGREEMENT ASSOCIATED WITH 
ORDINANCE #2080, WHICH PLACED SAID PROPERTY IN THE R-4 RESIDENTIAL 

ZONING DISTRICT 
 

 WHEREAS, the Zoning Agreement was approved by City Resolution No. 9798 on 
December 12, 1994 on property described as follows: 
 
 Part of the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 20, Township 89 
North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. in Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa, described as 
follows; Beginning 180 feet north of the Southeast corner of said Southwest Quarter; thence 
North 0°16’57” West 415 feet along the East line of said Southwest Quarter; thence North 
89°50’ West along a line parallel to the South line of said Southwest Quarter to the East line of 
Midway Addition, in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa; thence South 0°0’20” 
West to the most Southeasterly corner of Lot 36 in said Midway Addition; thence South 
51°36’20” West to the most Southerly corner of said Midway Addition; thence South 38°23’40” 
East 357.72 feet to the South Quarter; thence North 19°30’ East a distance of 730 feet to the 
point of beginning. 
 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Agreement was a part of the rezoning of property from the R-1, 
Residential Zoning District to the R-4, Residential Zoning District by Ordinance No. 2080 on 
January 9, 1995; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Iowa Code 414.5, as amended, provides that a City Council may impose 
reasonable conditions on granting an applicant’s rezoning request, over and above existing 
regulations, in order to satisfy public needs directly caused by the requested change; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Agreement contains certain additional restrictions to address 
concerns with potential traffic impacts to abutting lower density residential properties caused by 
certain higher intensity uses allowed within the R-4 Residential Zoning District; and 

 
 WHEREAS, certain conditions imposed under the original agreement have been satisfied, 

including the Lovejoy Drive cul-de-sac as part of the Midway 2nd Addition and the Greenhill Drive 
cul-de-sac as part of the Midway Business Park Addition; and 

-31-

Item G.3. 



 2 

 
WHEREAS, the Midway Business Park Addition is not connected with a public street into the 

adjoining residential neighborhoods; and 
 
WHEREAS, the traffic generated by the proposed development of Lots 7 and 8 will not 

interfere with the adjoining residential neighborhoods; and   
 
WHEREAS, Owner acknowledges that certain conditions and restrictions are reasonable to 

address remaining issues of compatibility with the surrounding lower density residential 
neighborhood; and 

 
WHEREAS, Owner has voluntarily offered to use the subject property in accordance with 

the terms and conditions of this Zoning Agreement, as amended herein, to address the public 
needs referenced above; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Midway Business Park Addition is subject to said zoning restrictions; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, First Security State Bank, is owner of Lots 7 and 8 in the Midway Business 
Park Addition; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the First Security State Bank proposes to amend Paragraph 2 of the 
Conditions contained in the Zoning Agreement for Lots 7 and 8 in the Midway Business Park 
Addition by amending the use of property to professional offices, nursing homes and senior 
assisted living facilities only. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
that said Rezoning of Lots 7 and 8 in the Midway Business Park Addition is hereby approved 
pursuant to the Zoning Agreement Amendment. 
  
INTRODUCED: ___________________August 6, 2018______________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _____August 6, 2018______________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

 
 
                                                                                              ____________________ 
                                                                                              James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-32-

Item G.3. 



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

August 6, 2018 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 6:20 p.m. on August 6, 
2018, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David 
Wieland. Staff members attended from all City Departments and other members of the 
community attended.  

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda 
Downtown Ordinance revisions related to building design review.  Iris Lehmann, Planner 
I reviewed the staff recommended changes to Section 29-168: Central Business District 
Overlay Zoning and Section 29-2: Definitions.  She explained these sections of the code 
provide guidance for building, site design standards, maintenance and development 
within the district.  She stated city staff has been working with Community Main Street to 
clarify the review process and provide more objectivity to the design criteria of this 
section.  It also cleans up the language and provides a better reader friendly code.  Ms. 
Lehmann continued by reviewing a summary of the proposed amendments including 
the addition of definitions for façade and storefront; existing residential buildings with up 
to seven units are exempted from the Planning and Zoning and City Council review 
process; allowing smaller front yard setbacks for new construction and improvements; 
the addition of building composition regulations, which include percentage of materials 
permitted on exterior of buildings, permitted colors of exterior; the addition of building 
entry regulations; and outlining the types of signs permitted in the overlay district.  
Council discussion was held.  Mayor Brown opened it for public comment.  Tim Schilling 
3434 Tuscan Drive commented do not over regulate, voicing concerns with the color 
regulation and signage size. Frank Darrah motioned to have staff proceed with the draft 
ordinance as presented. David Wieland seconded the motion. The motion carried 
unanimously.  

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda bills and payrolls.  David Wieland 
motioned to approve the bills and payrolls as presented and Tom Blanford seconded 
the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

There being no further discussion Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:52 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

-33-

Item H.1.a. 



 



ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
City Hall – Duke Young Conference Room  

July 23, 2018 
 

The Administrative Committee met in the Duke Young Conference Room of City Hall at 
5:00 p.m. on July 23, 2018, with the following Committee members in attendance: 
Susan deBuhr (Chair), Mark Miller, Tom Blanford, Frank Darrah, David Wieland and 
Rob Green.  City Administrator Ron Gaines, Directors Rodenbeck and Olson, Fire Chief 
Bostwick and City Attorney Rogers were also in attendance, along with management 
representative Attorney Mike Galloway and Cedar Falls Firefighters Association Local 
1366 representatives Scott Dix and Jeff Danielson. 
 
Chair deBuhr called the meeting to order and introduced the hearing to consider the 
appeal of an employee grievance denial. Chairperson deBuhr began the hearing by 
asking Firefighter Dix to explain the difference between this grievance and the 
grievance from 2015.  Dix responded that the information presented and situation 
surrounding the grievance has changed significantly since 2015.  Attorney Galloway 
referenced exhibits provided in advance of the meeting which included the ruling of a 
past grievance by an arbitrator in 2001 regarding firefighters being assigned the duties 
of rental housing inspections, and that the underlying facts of the grievances are 
identical. Galloway also noted that an arbitrator ruling is final and binding unless 
appealed to District Court, and that the ruling was never appealed in 2001, and that the 
City has been operating in accordance with the ruling since then.  Attorney Galloway 
questioned why this grievance is even being filed and requested that the Committee 
summarily deny it.  City Attorney Rogers asked if there had been any changes in the 
collective bargaining agreement or the job classification since the arbitrator ruling in 
2001 and the grievance appeal in 2015, which was denied.  Attorney Galloway 
responded that no changes had occurred in the bargaining agreement for the position of 
firefighter and that the firefighter job description contains the same type of language that 
the arbitrator used in the ruling.  Attorney Rogers then asked Firefighter Dix if he felt 
that the collective bargaining agreement or job classification had changed since 2015 
when the Administration Committee had denied the grievance previously, and 
Firefighter Dix responded that they had not changed substantially, but that the facts that 
the arbitrator used in the ruling have changed substantially since 2001.  Attorney 
Rogers responded that the issue is whether the duties of a rental housing inspector are 
included within the firefighter job classification.  Attorney Galloway responded to a 
question by Councilmember Miller that the increase in pay to firefighters in 2001 was 
not related to the rental inspection duties.  Firefighter Dix commented that he does not 
believe that the arbitrator would rule the same given the facts today because the basis 
of the arbitrator’s decision no longer exists, and he feels that is the substantial change. 
Dix also referenced a fact finding decision prior to arbitration that indicated that 
firefighters should be paid for these duties.  City Attorney Rogers confirmed with Dix 
that the Administration Committee decision denying the grievance appeal in 2015 was 
not appealed and that arbitration was not sought.  Dix argued that although the 
firefighter job classification had not changed, the duties did, in that until just recently, 
firefighters have not been performing rental inspections for many years.  Attorney 

-35-

Item H.1.b. 



Galloway provided clarification on the fact finding that Dix referred to, and explained that 
fact finding was removed from the law and no longer exists, but at the time, was merely 
a part of the impasse procedure.  Galloway further explained that fact finding is not 
binding and was merely a recommendation to the parties to see if they can resolve their 
contract, and that the fact finding report is irrelevant to this grievance hearing since the 
arbitrator’s ruling was final and binding, which stated that the job classification 
incorporates the duties of minimum rental housing inspections and that firefighters can 
perform those duties without additional compensation, adding that management has the 
right to assign duties within a job classification if and when they determine appropriate. 
 
Chair deBuhr asked for a motion to either hear the grievance or deny it based on the 
fact that the Administration Committee had already heard the grievance in 2015, the 
arbitrator’s ruling has already been given, and that there have been no changes to the 
collective bargaining agreement or the job classification. Wieland made a motion to 
deny the grievance, Miller seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
City Attorney Rogers indicated that a formal written decision would be forthcoming 
within 7 days.  Rogers also noted that the fact finding exhibit referenced and provided 
by Firefighter Dix would become part of the record.  Attorney Galloway did not object, 
although noting that the information was provided after the deadline.   
  
It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Green that the meeting be adjourned.  Motion 
carried unanimously. deBuhr adjourned the meeting at 5:13 p.m.  
 
Minutes by Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk  
 

-36-

Item H.1.b. 



MINUTES, BOARDS OF TRUSTEES, CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES 
 
July 23, 2018 
 

The Board of Trustees met on the above date in joint session with City Council. 

The meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m. by Chair MaraBeth K. Soneson.  Present were:  
Trustees:  MaraBeth K. Soneson, Craig A. Johnson, Pamela L. Taylor, Richard L. McAlister, and 
Jeffrey J. Engel.  Absent:  None.  Others present:  Steven E. Bernard, General Manager/CEO,  
Mayor Jim Brown, Thomas Nelson, Waterloo Courier report, and Dale Olson, customer; Council 
persons: Mark Miller, Susan deBuhr, Daryl Kruse, Frank Darrah, Rob Green, and David 
Wieland; City staff and Utility staff.  Absent:  Tom Blanford.   

The agenda was approved as printed and distributed. 

Mayor Brown expressed appreciation to both City Council and Trustees along with respective 
staff for their efforts in preparation of this meeting. 

Ron Gaines, City Administrator, provided an overview on:  tax rate and general financial 
information; the past year’s economic development activities and new initiatives; possible 
Industrial Park expansions, new Tax Increment Financing (TIF) district; and an update on the 
Public Safety Building and Public Safety Officer (PSO) program. 

General Manager Bernard provided brief overviews on:  the Electric Utility’s Solar Garden, 
renewable energy in Iowa, City road construction projects and costs for the Utilities; the 
Communications Utility’s Connect>CF project with Cedar Falls Schools; customer satisfaction 
survey results; phone, cable and internet business; and overhead to underground status. 

Customer Dale Olson expressed his interest in grid security, residential solar rates/incentives, 
and time of day electric rates.  Staff will continue to monitor these topics. 

The meeting adjourned at 3:53 p.m. 

 

   

 

-37-

Item H.1.c. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 15, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project 
  Project No. SW-000-3113 
  Bid Opening 
 
 
On Tuesday, August 14th, 2018 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 
2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project. One (1) bid was received from Feldman Concrete 
of Dyersville, Iowa in the amount of $38,923.88, which is 30% above the Engineer's 
Estimate of $29,884.18. Attached is a bid tab for your reference. 
 
The lack of bidders and the bid being above the Engineers estimate is concerning; 
however, the Engineering Division feels it can be attributed to fewer properties spaced 
over a wider area than in the 2017 Sidewalk Assessment Project. As a result of these 
findings, the Engineering Division recommends acceptance of this low bid from 
Feldman Concrete in the amount of $38,923.88. On September 4th, 2018, the Contract, 
Bonds and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
  
 

-39-

Item H.1.d. 



 



PROJECT BID TAB

PROJECT NAME: 2018 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT

CITY PROJECT NUMBER: SW - 000 - 3113

BID OPENING:August 14, 2018 (1)

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

BID EST. UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES

1 REMOVE SIDEWALK, P.C.C. S.F. 3,547.20 $1.75 $6,207.60 $2.25 $7,981.20

2 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH S.F. 2,598.50 $4.75 $12,342.88 $5.25 $13,642.13

3 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.F. 948.70 $5.75 $5,455.03 $6.50 $6,166.55

4 TOPSOIL, FURNISH AND SPREAD C.Y. 14.97 $65.00 $973.05 $75.00 $1,122.75

5 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING S.F. 1,207.5 $0.75 $905.63 $1.50 $1,811.25

6 WATER SERVICE CURB STOP ADJUSTMENT EACH 2.0 $250.00 $500.00 $300.00 $600.00

7 GRANULAR BACKFILL TONS 20.0 $25.00 $500.00 $30.00 $600.00

8 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1.0 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

TOTAL $29,884.18 TOTAL $38,923.88

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

ENGINEERING DIVISION

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE
Feldman Concrete

-41-

Item
 H

.1.d. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  August 14, 2018 

Re:  Special Event Related Requests 

Police Operations has received the following special event related requests and 
recommends approval:  

(1) Street closure, West 25th Street (Annual Welcome Back Party), August 26, 2018. 

(2) Street closures, ARTapalooza, September 8, 2018. 

(3) Street closures & parking variance, Friends of Western Home Communities 
Annual Breakfast & Family Fun, September 8, 2018. 

(4) Street closure, West 25th Street (Military Heroes Block Party), September 22, 
2018. 

(5) Street/parking lot closures & parking variances, UNI Homecoming activities, 
October 19-20, 2018. 

-43-

Item H.1.e. 



 



-45-

Item H.1.e. 



-46-

Item H.1.e. 



-47-

Item H.1.e. 



 



-49-

Item H.1.e. 



-50-

Item H.1.e. 



-51-

Item H.1.e. 



 



-53-

Item H.1.e. 



-54-

Item H.1.e. 



-55-

Item
 H

.1.e. 



 



-57-

Item H.1.e. 



-58-

Item H.1.e. 



-59-

Item H.1.e. 



 



-61-

Item H.1.e. 



-62-

Item H.1.e. 



-63-

Item H.1.e. 



-64-

Item H.1.e. 



-65-

Item H.1.e. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  August 16, 2018 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

(1) Main Street Sweets, 210 Main Street, Class B native wine - renewal. 

(2) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

(3) The Other Place, 4214 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

(4) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
 
(5) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 

renewal. 
 
(6) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class E liquor – change in ownership. 
 
(7) Jorgensen Plaza (Table 1912, Diamond Event Center and Gilmore's Pub), 5307 

Caraway Lane, Class C liquor – adding outdoor service. 
 
(8)  Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor - temporary outdoor 

service. (August 25-26, 2018) 

-67-

Item H.1.f. 



 



1 

   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  August 13, 2018 

Re: 2018-2019 Edward Byrne JAG Grant 

Attached is the 2018-2019 Edward Byrne JAG Grant Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) with Waterloo and Black Hawk County. The JAG Grant provides funding to the 
Tri-County Drug Task Force in which we are a member. This MOU allows for the 
distribution of these funds to the three entities. The total grant amount is $73,914.00 of 
which Cedar Falls will receive $14,781.60. These funds are used to support the task 
force of which a portion of these funds reimburse Cedar Falls for payroll expenses.  

I recommend approval of this agreement.  

-69-

Item H.2.a. 



 



-71-

Item H.2.a. 



-72-

Item H.2.a. 



-73-

Item H.2.b. 



-74-

Item H.2.b. 



-75-

Item H.2.b. 



-76-

Item H.2.b. 



-77-

Item H.2.b. 



-78-

Item H.2.b. 



-79-

Item H.2.b. 



-80-

Item H.2.b. 



-81-

Item H.2.b. 



-82-

Item H.2.b. 



-83-

Item H.2.b. 



-84-

Item H.2.b. 



-85-

Item H.2.b. 



-86-

Item H.2.b. 



-87-

Item H.2.b. 



-88-

Item H.2.b. 



-89-

Item H.2.b. 



-90-

Item H.2.b. 



-91-

Item H.2.b. 



-92-

Item H.2.b. 



-93-

Item H.2.b. 



-94-

Item H.2.b. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 
 
 DATE: January 22, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: University Avenue Reconstruction Project – Phase I 
  Project No. RC – 000 – 1996  
   Partial Release of Retainage 
 
 
The City entered into a contract with K. Cunningham Construction on January 18, 2016 
for the University Avenue Phase I Reconstruction Project. This project was completed in 
the summer of 2017 and recently the contractor has been finalizing the completion 
paperwork. 
 
The primary infrastructure and punch list has been completed and the contractor is 
requesting additional release of the retained funds for the project. The final contract 
amount is $13,691,872.87 of which 99% has been paid. A partial release of funds is 
recommended in the amount of $194,273.55. The City will withhold the remaining 
$20,000 until all final documents are received.  
 
The release of early retainage is outlined in Iowa Code Chapter 26.13 and the details on 
payment of early retainage are described in Iowa Code Chapter 573.14 and 573.15A. 
The City will not issue final acceptance of this project until all of the final documents 
have been submitted and approved. 
 
The Engineering Department recommends the partial release of retainage funds for the 
University Avenue Phase I Reconstruction Project. 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 

-95-

Item H.2.c. 



 



City of Cedar Falls

220 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Phone (319) 273-8600

Fax (319) 268-5126

RC-000-1996
Project 

Number
14C017.01

Contractor:

$13,824,462.32

to

Item Item Est. Unit Extended Quantity Value

No. Code Qty. Price Price Completed Completed

DIVISION 1 - GENERAL

1.1 1090-D-1000 MOBILIZATION 1 $2,400,000.00 $2,400,000.00 1.00 $2,400,000.00

DIVISION 2 - EARTHWORK, SUBGRADE AND SUBBASE

2.1 2010-C-1000 CLEARING & GRUBBING 109 $50.00 $5,450.00 160.00 $8,000.00

2.2 2010-D-1000 TOPSOIL, ON SITE 5,970 $8.00 $47,760.00 5,970.00 $47,760.00

2.3 2010-D-3000 TOPSOIL, CONTRACTOR FURNISH 7,040 $12.50 $88,000.00 7,040.00 $88,000.00

2.4 2010-E-1010 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY & BORROW 16,989 $6.50 $110,428.50 16,989.00 $110,428.50

2.5 2010-E-1100 EXCAVATION, UNSUITABLE WASTE 13,432 $8.00 $107,456.00 10,120.00 $80,960.00

2.6 2010-E-1100 SUITABLE FILL MATERIAL, CONTRACTOR FURNISH 12,174 $6.50 $79,131.00 12,174.00 $79,131.00

2.7 2010-E-1102 SELECT SUBGRADE FILL MATERIAL, CONTRACTOR FURNISH 6,000 $12.50 $75,000.00 5,102.00 $63,775.00

2.8 2010-E-1200 COMPACTION WITH MOISTURE & DENSITY CONTROL 18,174 $1.00 $18,174.00 17,276.00 $17,276.00

2.9 2010-F-1000 BELOW GRADE EXCAVATION (CORE OUT) 9,000 $7.00 $63,000.00 5,102.00 $35,714.00

2.10 2010-G-1006 SUBGRADE PREPARATION, 6 IN. 5,286 $0.75 $3,964.50 9,986.00 $7,489.50

2.11 2010-G-1012 SUBGRADE PREPARATION, 12 IN. 70,960 $1.25 $88,700.00 61,319.80 $76,649.75

2.12 2010-H-1000 GEOGRID 15,000 $1.25 $18,750.00 14,785.50 $18,481.88

2.13 2010-I-1000 MODIFIED SUBBASE 27,535 $18.60 $512,151.00 25,930.00 $482,298.00

2.14 2010-J-1100 REMOVALS, AS PER PLAN 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 1.00 $15,000.00

2.15 2010-J-1101 REMOVAL OF UTILITY ACCESS STRUCTURES 13 $1,600.00 $20,800.00 14.00 $22,400.00

2.16 2010-J-1120 RELOCATION OF MAILBOXES 18 $125.00 $2,250.00 23.00 $2,875.00

2.17 2010-J-3000 REMOVAL OF CONCRETE UTILITY DUCT 4,081 $8.00 $32,648.00 4,081.00 $32,648.00

2.18 2010-J-3000 REMOVAL OF WATER MAIN 496 $10.00 $4,960.00 465.50 $4,655.00

DIVISION 3 - TRENCH AND TRENCHLESS CONSTRUCTION

3.1 3010-C-1000 TRENCH FOUNDATION 1,200 $23.00 $27,600.00 391.81 $9,011.63

DIVISION 4 - SEWERS AND DRAINS

4.1 4010-A-1008  SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, PVC TRUSS, 8 IN. 332 $43.00 $14,276.00 319.00 $13,717.00

4.2 4010-A-1010  SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, PVC TRUSS, 10 IN. 529 $40.00 $21,160.00 529.00 $21,160.00

4.3 4010-A-1012  SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, PVC TRUSS, 12 IN. 22 $90.00 $1,980.00 35.00 $3,150.00

4.4 4010-A-1015  SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, PVC TRUSS, 15 IN. 52 $73.00 $3,796.00 52.00 $3,796.00

4.5 4010-A-2016  SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, DIP, CLASS 56, 16 IN. 115 $156.00 $17,940.00 141.00 $21,996.00

4.6 4010-E-1004 SANITARY SEWER SERVICE STUB, TRENCHED, PVC, 4 IN. 15 $180.00 $2,700.00 48.00 $8,640.00

4.7 SPECIAL SANITARY SEWER SERVICE, REPAIR 16 $2,500.00 $40,000.00 16.00 $40,000.00

4.8 4020-A-1324 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 24 IN. 2,797 $65.00 $181,805.00 2636.00 $171,340.00

4.9 4020-A-1330 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 30 IN. 830 $75.00 $62,250.00 991.00 $74,325.00

4.10 4020-A-1336 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 36 IN. 618 $90.00 $55,620.00 618.00 $55,620.00

4.11 4020-A-1342 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 42 IN. 298 $121.00 $36,058.00 298.00 $36,058.00

4.12 4020-A-1348 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 48 IN. 968 $135.00 $130,680.00 968.00 $130,680.00

4.13 4020-A-1354 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 54 IN. 373 $155.00 $57,815.00 373.00 $57,815.00

Notice to Proceed Date

Pay Request Number

8/15/2018

Estimated Completion Date

BID ITEMS

Description

K. Cunningham Construction Co., Inc.

Project Title

Purchase Order Number

PAY REQUEST 

City of Cedar Falls                                                                                                                                                                                     

Project File No.

Contract ID

1/18/2016

Date

1025 Center Street

Cedar Falls, IA 50613

35

Orig. Contract Amount & Date

35

Pay Period

7/31/2017

University Avenue Reconstruction-Phase 1

Grove Street to McClain Drive

C:\Users\ttl\Desktop\PR35-2018-0815-CF University Ph 1.xlsm

PR35-2018-0815-CF University Ph 1.xlsm

Page 1 of 6-97-

Item H.2.c. 



4.14 4020-A-1360 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 60 IN. 700 $210.00 $147,000.00 700.00 $147,000.00

4.15 4020-A-1366 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 66 IN. 1,146 $250.00 $286,500.00 1169.00 $292,250.00

4.16 4020-A-1312 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS V, 12 IN. 14 $52.00 $728.00 15.00 $780.00

4.17 4020-A-1315 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS V, 15 IN. 2,109 $54.00 $113,886.00 2135.00 $115,290.00

4.18 4020-A-1318 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS V, 18 IN. 1,795 $58.00 $104,110.00 1797.00 $104,226.00

4.19 4020-A-2012 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, PVC, 12 IN. 267 $48.00 $12,816.00 264.00 $12,672.00

4.20 4020-C-1000 REMOVAL STORM SEWER PIPE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN. 7,296 $8.00 $58,368.00 12211.30 $97,690.40

4.21 4020-C-2000 REMOVAL STORM SEWER PIPE GREATER THAN 36 IN. 2,458 $10.00 $24,580.00 2472.00 $24,720.00

4.22 4020-E-1000 SANITARY OR STORM SEWER ABANDONMENT, FILL AND PLUG 1,121 $40.00 $44,840.00 1354.00 $54,160.00

4.23 4030-B-1312 PIPE APRON, CMP, 15 IN. 1 $170.00 $170.00 1.00 $170.00

4.24 4030-B-1315 PIPE APRON, CONCRETE, 15 IN. 3 $1,200.00 $3,600.00 3.00 $3,600.00

4.25 SPECIAL BEND, HORIZONTAL, 60" DIA. RCP 1 $1,400.00 $1,400.00 1.00 $1,400.00

4.26 SPECIAL BEND, HORIZONTAL, 66" DIA. RCP 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 4.00 $6,000.00

4.27 4040-A-1006 SUBDRAIN, HDPE, CASE B, 6 IN. 19,646 $11.50 $225,929.00 20041.00 $230,471.50

4.28 4040-A-2000 SUBDRAIN, HDPE, UNSPECIFIED DIA. 500 $32.50 $16,250.00 25.00 $812.50

4.29 4040-C-1000 SUBDRAIN CLEANOUT, TYPE B 3 $420.00 $1,260.00 3.00 $1,260.00

4.30 4040-D-1010 SUBDRAIN, CONNECTION TO INTAKE OR STORM SEWER 189 $250.00 $47,250.00 196.00 $49,000.00

4.31 4060-B-1000 VIDEO INSPECTION OF SANITARY AND STORM SEWER 1 $38,000.00 $38,000.00 1.00 $38,000.00

DIVISION 5 - WATER MAIN AND APPURTENANCES

5.1 5010-A-1004 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE, RESTRAINED JOINT 4 IN. 70 $84.00 $5,880.00 0.00 $0.00

5.2 5010-A-1006 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE, 6 IN. 242 $64.00 $15,488.00 346.50 $22,176.00

5.3 5010-A-1006 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE, RESTRAINED JOINT 6 IN. 244 $78.00 $19,032.00 0.00 $0.00

5.4 5010-A-1008 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE, 8 IN. 1,105 $60.00 $66,300.00 1105.00 $66,300.00

5.5 5010-A-1008 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE, RESTRAINED JOINT 8 IN. 1,150 $74.00 $85,100.00 0.00 $0.00

5.6 5010-A-1012 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE, 12 IN. 4,257 $77.00 $327,789.00 4257.00 $327,789.00

5.7 5010-A-1012 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE, RESTRAINED JOINT 12 IN. 988 $92.00 $90,896.00 0.00 $0.00

5.8 GASKETS, SPECIAL, WATER MAIN, 6 IN. 5 $15.00 $75.00 20.00 $300.00

5.9 GASKETS, SPECIAL, WATER MAIN, 8 IN. 10 $20.00 $200.00 24.00 $480.00

5.10 SUPPLEMENTAL GASKETS, SPECIAL, WATER MAIN, 12 IN. 100 $35.00 $3,500.00 86.00 $3,010.00

5.11 5010-C-2000 WATER MAIN FITTINGS 7,827 $8.00 $62,616.00 14077.00 $112,616.00

5.12 5010-D-1001 WATER SERVICE CONNECTION, COPPER, 1 IN. 13 $910.00 $11,830.00 14.00 $12,740.00

5.13 5010-D-1002 WATER SERVICE CONNECTION, COPPER, 2 IN. 23 $1,900.00 $43,700.00 6.00 $11,400.00

5.14 5010-A-1001 WATER SERVICE LINE, COPPER, 1 IN. 482 $25.00 $12,050.00 463.00 $11,575.00

5.15 5010-A-1002 WATER SERVICE LINE, COPPER, 2 IN. 1,036 $38.00 $39,368.00 132.00 $5,016.00

5.16 5010-A-2002 WATER SERVICE SLEEVE, PVC, 2 IN. 200 $20.00 $4,000.00 0.00 $0.00

5.17 5010-A-2003 WATER SERVICE SLEEVE, PVC, 3 IN. 400 $24.00 $9,600.00 69.00 $1,656.00

5.18 5020-A-1004 VALVE, GATE, 4 IN. 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 1.00 $1,000.00

5.19 5020-A-1006 VALVE, GATE, 6 IN. 5 $1,300.00 $6,500.00 7.00 $9,100.00

5.20 5020-A-1008 VALVE, GATE, 8 IN. 12 $1,750.00 $21,000.00 14.00 $24,500.00

5.21 5020-A-1012 VALVE, GATE, 12 IN. 26 $2,600.00 $67,600.00 21.00 $54,600.00

5.22 SUPPLEMENTAL REMOVAL OF FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY 8 $400.00 $3,200.00 8.00 $3,200.00

5.23 5020-C-1000 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY 23 $4,400.00 $101,200.00 20.00 $88,000.00

5.24 SUPPLEMENTAL RELOCATION OF WATER MAIN 2 $2,900.00 $5,800.00 3.00 $8,700.00

5.25 SUPPLEMENTAL RELOCATION OF WATER SERVICES 12 $771.00 $9,252.00 0.00 $0.00

DIVISION 6 - STRUCTURES FOR SANITARY AND STORM SEWER

6.1 6010-A-1048 MANHOLE, SANITARY SEWER, SW-301, 48 IN. 10 $4,000.00 $40,000.00 10.00 $40,000.00

6.2 6010-A-2048 MANHOLE REPAIR, SANITARY SEWER, SW-301, 48 IN. 2 $2,000.00 $4,000.00 2.00 $4,000.00

6.3 6010-A-1548 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 48 IN. 9 $3,500.00 $31,500.00 8.00 $28,000.00

6.4 6010-A-1560 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 60 IN. 3 $6,600.00 $19,800.00 4.00 $26,400.00

6.5 6010-A-1572 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 72 IN. 3 $7,850.00 $23,550.00 3.00 $23,550.00

6.6 6010-A-1584 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 84 IN. 1 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 1.00 $9,000.00

6.7 6010-A-1596 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 96 IN. 4 $14,500.00 $58,000.00 4.00 $58,000.00

6.8 6010-A-1672 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-402, 6' x 6' 1 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 2.00 $8,000.00

6.9 6010-A-1684 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-402, 7' x 7' 1 $5,750.00 $5,750.00 1.00 $5,750.00

6.10 6010-A-1772 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-403, 6' x 6' 3 $7,100.00 $21,300.00 3.00 $21,300.00

6.11 6010-A-1784 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-403, 7' x 7' 1 $7,300.00 $7,300.00 1.00 $7,300.00

6.12 6010-A-1948 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-405, 48 IN. 6 $5,200.00 $31,200.00 7.00 $36,400.00

6.13 6010-B-1501 INTAKE, SINGLE GRATE, SW-501 17 $3,200.00 $54,400.00 17.00 $54,400.00

6.14 6010-B-1502 INTAKE, SW-502, 48 IN. 5 $3,500.00 $17,500.00 5.00 $17,500.00

6.15 6010-B-1502 INTAKE, SW-502, 60 IN. 2 $5,700.00 $11,400.00 2.00 $11,400.00

6.16 6010-B-1502 INTAKE, SW-502, 72 IN. 2 $7,000.00 $14,000.00 2.00 $14,000.00

C:\Users\ttl\Desktop\PR35-2018-0815-CF University Ph 1.xlsm

PR35-2018-0815-CF University Ph 1.xlsm

Page 2 of 6-98-

Item H.2.c. 



6.17 6010-B-1502 INTAKE, SW-502, 96 IN. 3 $16,500.00 $49,500.00 3.00 $49,500.00

6.18 6010-B-1503 INTAKE, SINGLE GRATE WITH MANHOLE, SW-503 16 $4,900.00 $78,400.00 17.00 $83,300.00

6.19 6010-B-1503 INTAKE, SINGLE GRATE WITH MANHOLE, SW-503 MOD. 1 7 $6,800.00 $47,600.00 6.00 $40,800.00

6.20 6010-B-1505 INTAKE, DOUBLE GRATE, SW-505 30 $4,000.00 $120,000.00 31.00 $124,000.00

6.21 6010-B-1505 INTAKE, DOUBLE GRATE, SW-505 MOD. 1 1 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 1.00 $6,000.00

6.22 6010-B-1506 INTAKE, DOUBLE GRATE WITH MANHOLE, SW-506 10 $5,800.00 $58,000.00 10.00 $58,000.00

6.23 6010-B-1506 INTAKE, DOUBLE GRATE WITH MANHOLE, SW-506 MOD. 1 3 $8,200.00 $24,600.00 3.00 $24,600.00

6.24 6010-B-1506 INTAKE, DOUBLE GRATE WITH MANHOLE, SW-506 MOD. 2, 72 IN. 5 $9,500.00 $47,500.00 5.00 $47,500.00

 6.25 6010-B-1506 INTAKE, DOUBLE GRATE WITH MANHOLE, SW-506 MOD. 2, 96 IN. 1 $11,500.00 $11,500.00 0.00 $0.00

6.26 SPECIAL INTAKE, TRIPLE GRATE 3 $6,000.00 $18,000.00 3.00 $18,000.00

6.27 SPECIAL INTAKE, TRIPLE GRATE WITH MANHOLE 1 $9,400.00 $9,400.00 1.00 $9,400.00

6.28 6010-B-1511 INTAKE, RECTANGULAR AREA, SW-511 3 $2,800.00 $8,400.00 3.00 $8,400.00

6.29 6010-B-1512 INTAKE, CIRCULAR AREA, SW-512, CASE 1, 24 IN. 2 $1,300.00 $2,600.00 3.00 $3,900.00

6.30 6010-B-1512 INTAKE, CIRCULAR AREA, SW-512, CASE 1, 30 IN. 1 $1,700.00 $1,700.00 1.00 $1,700.00

6.31 6010-F-1000 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MAJOR 14 $1,200.00 $16,800.00 6.00 $7,200.00

6.32 6010-F-1001 MANHOLE/INTAKE ADJUSTMENT, MINOR 11 $800.00 $8,800.00 20.00 $16,000.00

6.33 6010-G-2000 CONNECTION TO EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE 1 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 1.00 $1,600.00

6.34 6010-H-1000 REMOVE MANHOLE OR INTAKE 117 $280.00 $32,760.00 126.00 $35,280.00

6.35 SPECIAL TEMPORARY CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING STORM SEWER 5 $4,300.00 $21,500.00 7.00 $30,100.00

6.36 SPECIAL PARTIAL INTAKE/MANHOLE CONSTRUCTION 15 $500.00 $7,500.00 3.00 $1,500.00

DIVISION 7 - STREETS & RELATED WORK

7.1 7010-A-1009 PAVEMENT, PCC, CLASS C, 9 IN. 21,575 $43.55 $939,591.25 22066.82 $961,010.05

7.2 7010-A-1010 PAVEMENT, PCC, CLASS C, 10 IN. 34,864 $46.00 $1,603,744.00 35573.52 $1,636,381.92

7.3 7010-A-1011 PAVEMENT, PCC, CLASS C, REINFORCED, 10 IN. 677 $87.00 $58,899.00 703.10 $61,169.70

7.4 7010-E-1007 CURB AND GUTTER, PCC, VARIABLE WIDTH, 7 IN. 2,742 $21.00 $57,582.00 2345.00 $49,245.00

7.5 7010-G-1000 CONCRETE MEDIAN, PAVED, 6 IN. 308 $55.00 $16,940.00 364.60 $20,053.00

7.6 7010-G-2000 CONCRETE MEDIAN, DOWELLED 60 $180.00 $10,800.00 0.00 $0.00

7.7 7030-A-1000 REMOVAL, SIDEWALK, TRAIL AND DRIVEWAY 10,144 $4.25 $43,112.00 10150.00 $43,137.48

7.8 7030-C-1006 SHARED USE PATH, PCC, 6 IN. 6,382 $29.50 $188,269.00 6382.00 $188,269.00

7.9 7030-C-2006 SHARED USE PATH, REINFORCED PCC, 6 IN. 100 $43.50 $4,350.00 107.10 $4,658.85

7.10 7030-E-1005 SIDEWALK, PCC, 5 IN. 2,296 $28.50 $65,436.00 2372.11 $67,605.14

7.11 7030-E-1006 SIDEWALK RAMP, PCC, 6 IN. 989 $39.50 $39,065.50 1002.45 $39,596.78

7.12 7030-G-1000 DETECTABLE WARNINGS 1,312 $28.00 $36,736.00 1312.00 $36,736.00

7.13 7030-H-1007 DRIVEWAY, PCC, 7 IN. 5,485 $29.00 $159,065.00 5443.50 $157,861.50

7.14 7030-H-2007 BUS STOP, REINFORCED PCC, 7 IN. 408 $42.50 $17,340.00 414.17 $17,602.08

7.15 7040-H-1000 REMOVAL, ROADWAY PAVEMENT 79,592 $3.50 $278,572.00 79481.00 $278,183.50

7.16 7040-I-1000 REMOVAL, CURB AND GUTTER 25 $300.00 $7,500.00 26.91 $8,073.00

7.17 SUPPLEMENTAL SAWCUT 16,345 $5.00 $81,725.00 18393.00 $91,965.00

7.18 SUPPLEMENTAL PAVEMENT GRINDING 1,731 $6.00 $10,386.00 0.00 $0.00

7.19 2304-0101000 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT 10,487 $54.90 $575,736.30 10419.33 $572,021.22

7.20 2304-0101000 TRANSITION PAVEMENT 1,578 $58.90 $92,944.20 1423.00 $83,814.70

DIVISION 8 - TRAFFIC SIGNALS AND TRAFFIC CONTROL

8.1 2528-8445110 TRAFFIC CONTROL 1 $85,000.00 $85,000.00 1.00 $85,000.00

8.2 2528-8400048 TEMPORARY BARRIER RAIL, CONCRETE 950 $15.00 $14,250.00 1150.00 $17,250.00

8.3 2528-8400157 TEMPORARY FLOODLIGHTING LUMINAIRE 12 $2,750.00 $33,000.00 4.00 $11,000.00

8.4 2528-8445113 FLAGGER 25 $475.00 $11,875.00 1.50 $712.50

8.5 2528-9109020 TEMPORARY LANE SEPARATION SYSTEM 2,030 $7.00 $14,210.00 1110.00 $7,770.00

8.6 SUPPLEMENTAL TEMPORARY BUSINESS ACCESS SIGN 34 $150.00 $5,100.00 107.00 $16,050.00

8.7 2528-9290050 PORTABLE DYNAMIC MESSAGE SIGN 435 $50.00 $21,750.00 219.00 $10,950.00

8.8 SPECIAL TEMPORARY TRAFFIC SIGNALS 4 $25,000.00 $100,000.00 4.00 $100,000.00

8.9 SPECIAL PEDESTRIAN FLASHING CROSSING 1 $16,500.00 $16,500.00 1.00 $16,500.00

8.10 2525-0000120 REMOVAL OF TRAFFIC SIGNALIZATION 5 $3,875.00 $19,375.00 5.00 $19,375.00

DIVISION 9 - SITEWORK AND LANDSCAPING

9.1 9010-B-1100 HYDRAULIC SEED, FERT. & MULCH, TYPE 1 (PERM. LAWN MIXTURE) 10 $3,484.80 $34,848.00 14.93 $52,042.00

9.2 9010-B-1400 HYDRAULIC SEED, FERT. & MULCH, TYPE 4 (URBAN TEMP. EROSION CONTROL MIX) 10 $1,742.10 $17,421.00 0.00 $0.00

9.3 9010-D-1000 WATERING 922 $15.45 $14,244.90 229.00 $3,538.05

9.4 9010-E-1000 WARRANTY 1 $5,075.00 $5,075.00 1.00 $5,075.00

9.5 9020-A-1000 SODDING 256 $44.00 $11,264.00 196.00 $8,624.00

9.6 9040-A-2000 STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP), MANAGEMENT 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 1.00 $15,000.00

9.7 9040-D-1012 FILTER SOCKS, 12 IN. 5,000 $3.25 $16,250.00 4038.00 $13,123.50

9.8 9040-D-2012 FILTER SOCKS, 12 IN., MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL 5,000 $0.50 $2,500.00 4038.00 $2,019.00

C:\Users\ttl\Desktop\PR35-2018-0815-CF University Ph 1.xlsm

PR35-2018-0815-CF University Ph 1.xlsm

Page 3 of 6-99-

Item H.2.c. 



9.9 9040-E-1001 TEMPORARY ROLLED EROSION CONTROL PRODUCTS 206 $15.55 $3,203.30 246.00 $3,825.30

9.10 9040-N-1000 SILT FENCE 9,958 $2.00 $19,916.00 2090.00 $4,180.00

9.11 9040-N-3000 SILT FENCE, REMOVAL 7,340 $0.50 $3,670.00 1548.00 $774.00

9.12 9040-Q-1000 EROSION CONTROL MULCHING, CONVENTIONAL MULCHING 10 $1,742.40 $17,424.00 4.34 $7,562.02

9.13 9040-T-1000 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE 172 $150.00 $25,800.00 230.00 $34,500.00

9.14 9060-A-1040 CHAIN LINK FENCE, 48 IN. 331 $21.95 $7,265.45 338.00 $7,419.10

9.15 9060-A-1060 CHAIN LINK FENCE, 60 IN. 450 $25.95 $11,677.50 450.00 $11,677.50

9.16 9060-E-1000 REMOVAL OF FENCE 508 $10.00 $5,080.00 638.00 $6,380.00

9.17 9060-F-1000 CHAIN LINK FENCE, TEMPORARY 450 $15.00 $6,750.00 450.00 $6,750.00

9.18 9070-A-1000 RETAINING WALLS 1,800 $22.69 $40,842.00 1960.00 $44,472.40

9.19 SUPPLEMENTAL REMOVAL OF STREET LIGHTING 54 $565.00 $30,510.00 53.00 $29,945.00

9.20 SUPPLEMENTAL LIGHTING 1 $422,619.00 $422,619.00 1.00 $422,619.00

9.21 SPECIAL LANDSCAPING 1 $845,000.00 $845,000.00 1.00 $845,000.00

DIVISION 10 - DEMOLITION

10.1 1010-A-1000 DEMOLITION OF BUILDING 1 $6,100.00 $6,100.00 1.00 $6,100.00

DIVISION 11 - MISCELLANEOUS

11.1 2520-3350015 FIELD OFFICE 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 1.00 $15,000.00

DIVISION 12 - STRUCTURES

12.1 2401-6745910 SIGNING, REMOVAL AND SALVAGE 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 1.00 $1,500.00

12.2 2524-9276010 POSTS FOR SIGNS, STEEL 2,088 $10.00 $20,880.00 2096.00 $20,960.00

12.3  2524-9276021 ANCHOR POST, STEEL 185 $35.00 $6,475.00 186.00 $6,510.00

12.4 2524-9325001 TYPE A SIGNS 1,317 $17.00 $22,382.20 1316.75 $22,384.75

12.5 2527-9263109 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, WATERBORNE 595 $39.00 $23,200.32 795.00 $31,005.00

12.6 2527-9263137 PAINTED SYMBOLS & LEGENDS, WATERBORNE 120 $80.00 $9,600.00 153.00 $12,240.00

12.7 2527-9263131 REMOVABLE TAPE MARKINGS, WET RETROFLECTIVE 169 $115.00 $19,430.40 103.33 $11,882.95

12.8 2527-9263180 PAVEMENT MARKINGS REMOVED 156 $32.00 $4,989.12 261.89 $8,380.48

DIVISION 13 - CULVERT

13.1 2402-0425031 GRANULAR BACKFILL 278 $20.00 $5,560.00 402.99 $8,059.80

13.2 2402-2720000 EXCAVATION, CLASS 20 165 $10.00 $1,650.00 165.00 $1,650.00

13.3 2403-0100020 STRUCTURAL CONCRETE (RCB) 79 $1,030.00 $81,473.00 79.10 $81,473.00

13.4 2404-7775000 REINFORCING STEEL 13,247 $0.01 $132.47 13247.00 $132.47

13.5 2507-3250005 ENGINEERING FABRIC 533 $3.50 $1,863.75 533.00 $1,865.50

13.6 2507-6800061 REVETMENT, CLASS E 471 $37.00 $17,441.80 498.56 $18,446.72

13.7 2519-1001000 FENCE, CHAIN LINK, VINYL COATED 47 $153.95 $7,204.86 46.80 $7,204.86

13.8 2599-9999020 GRANULAR BEDDING 52 $20.00 $1,040.00 94.90 $1,898.00

CHANGE ORDER 1

CO 4.05 Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, DIP, CL 56, 16-inch 60 $156.00 $9,360.00 60.00 $9,360.00

CO 4.32 Removal of Sanitary Sewer Pipe 455 $13.20 $6,006.00 497.00 $6,560.40

CHANGE ORDER 2

CO 6.25 Intake, Double grate with Manhole, SW-506, MOD. 2, 96-inch (Delete) 1 -$11,500.00 -$11,500.00 0.00 $0.00

CHANGE ORDER 3

CO 5.01 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, Restrained Joint, 4-inch -70 $84.00 -$5,880.00 0.00 $0.00

CO 501A Gasket, Field Lok, Water Main, 4-inch 4 $60.50 $242.00 0.00 $0.00

CO 5.01B Gasket, Field Lok, Water Main, 6-inch 13 $77.00 $1,001.00 12.00 $924.00

CO 5.01C Gasket, Field Lok, Water Main, 8-inch 58 $104.50 $6,061.00 18.00 $1,881.00

CO 5.01D Gasket, Field Lok, Water Main, 12-inch 50 $203.50 $10,175.00 42.00 $8,547.00

CO 5.01E Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 4-inch 70 $66.00 $4,620.00 8.00 $528.00

CO 5.02 Water Main Trenched, DIP, 6-inch 244 $64.00 $15,616.00 244.00 $15,616.00

CO 5.03 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, Restrained Joint, 6-inch -244 $78.00 -$19,032.00 0.00 $0.00

CO 5.04 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 8-inch 1,150 $60.00 $69,000.00 436.00 $26,160.00

CO 5.05 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, Restrained Joint, 8-inch -1,150 $74.00 -$85,100.00 0.00 $0.00

CO 5.06 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 12-inch 988 $77.00 $76,076.00 947.00 $72,919.00

CO 5.07 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, Restrained Joint, 12-inch -988 $92.00 -$90,896.00 0.00 $0.00

CHANGE ORDER 4

CO 2.01A Clearing and Grubbing (A) 5 $137.50 $687.50 5.00 $687.50

CO 4.07A Strongback Fernco C-Collars 16 $275.00 $4,400.00 0.00 $0.00

CO 4.07B Strongback Fernco C-Collars at Existing Main 10 $440.00 $4,400.00 0.00 $0.00

CO 4.28A Wells Fargo Roof Drain Connection 1 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 1.00 $5,500.00

CO 10.02 Demolition of Garage 1 $3,520.00 $3,520.00 1.00 $3,520.00

CO 10.03 Disposal of Garage 10 $44.00 $440.00 8.56 $376.64

CHANGE ORDER 5

C:\Users\ttl\Desktop\PR35-2018-0815-CF University Ph 1.xlsm

PR35-2018-0815-CF University Ph 1.xlsm

Page 4 of 6-100-

Item H.2.c. 



CO 4.07C Sanitary Sewer Repair Downtime 1 $1,650.00 $1,650.00 1.00 $1,650.00

CO 4.32 Storm Sewer, Non-perforated, 24" DHPE dual wall 200 $77.00 $15,400.00 185.00 $14,245.00

CO 6.01A Sanitary Sewer Manhole Core Drill 3 $440.00 $1,320.00 3.00 $1,320.00

CO 6.01B Sanitary sewer Manhole Barrel Section 4 $154.00 $616.00 4.00 $616.00

CO 6.01C Sanitary Sewer Manhole Invert 1 $275.00 $275.00 1.00 $275.00

CO 6.01D Sanitary Sewer Linkseals 3 $220.00 $660.00 3.00 $660.00

CO 6.09A Intake, SW-402, Top Only 1 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 1.00 $2,200.00

CO 6.13A Intake, SW 502, Top Only 1 $2,750.00 $2,750.00 1.00 $2,750.00

CO 8.11 Remove and Reinstall Temporary Signal Pole 1 $2,750.00 $2,750.00 1.00 $2,750.00

CO 9.20 Lighting (Deduct) 1 -$55,903.14 -$55,903.14 1.00 -$55,903.14

CO 9.20A Light Pole Relocate 1 $1,650.00 $1,650.00 1.00 $1,650.00

CO 11.1 Field Office (Deduct) 1 -$1,500.00 -$1,500.00 1.00 -$1,500.00

CO 12.01A Restaurant Sign Relocate 3 $1,100.00 $3,300.00 3.00 $3,300.00

CHANGE ORDER 6

CO 7.21 Temporary Shoulder 1 $2,648.25 $2,648.25 1.00 $2,648.25

CO 8.11 Conduit Repair 1 $1,842.00 $1,842.00 1.00 $1,842.00

CO 10.04 Demolition & Disposal of Clarion Inn Sign Footing 1 $6,572.50 $6,572.50 1.00 $6,572.50

CHANGE ORDER 7

CO 9.22 Weed Barrier and River Rock 800 $2.20 $1,760.00 350.00 $770.00

CO 9.23 Repair of Private Underground Line for Billboard (Holiday South) 1 $1,613.00 $1,613.00 1.00 $1,613.00

CO 9.24 Amigos's Light Pole Relocation 1 $1,320.00 $1,320.00 1.00 $1,320.00

CO 9.20A Lighting 1 $9,434.25 $9,434.25 1.00 $9,434.25

CHANGE ORDER 8

CO 6.37 Sanitary Sewer Main Repair 1 $1,705.00 $1,705.00 1.00 $1,705.00

CO 7.22 Cold Patch 1 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 1.00 $1,200.00

CO 8.12 R6-5P Signs 7 $176.00 $1,232.00 7.00 $1,232.00

CO 8.13 Core Drilling for Signs 2 $550.00 $1,100.00 2.00 $1,100.00

CO 8.01 A Traffic Control 1 $3,025.00 $3,025.00 1.00 $3,025.00

CO 8.01 B Traffic Control 1 $500.00 $500.00 1.00 $500.00

CHANGE ORDER 9

CO 5.26 8" Live Tap 1 $1,540.00 $1,540.00 1.00 $1,540.00

CO 9.20C Relolcation of Light Pole Footings 7 $1,320.00 $9,240.00 7.00 $9,240.00

CO 9.25 Landscaping Deduct 1 -$3,300.00 -$3,300.00 0.00 $0.00

CO 9.26 Median Paver Edge Restraint 160 $28.00 $4,480.00 150.00 $4,200.00

CHANGE ORDER 10

CO 2.19 Backfill/Restore Area 1 $475.00 $475.00 1.00 $475.00

CO 7.02A Pavement, PCC, Class C, 10 IN 66 $80.00 $5,280.00 66.00 $5,280.00

CO 7.05A Concrete Median Paved, 6 IN 3 $200.00 $600.00 3.00 $600.00

CO 7.15A Removal, Roadway Pavement 69 $18.00 $1,242.00 69.00 $1,242.00

CO 7.15B Removal, Median Pavement 6 $56.00 $336.00 6.00 $336.00

CO 7.16A Removal, Curb and Gutter 36 $15.00 $540.00 36.00 $540.00

CO 7.17A Sawcut 177 $5.00 $885.00 177.00 $885.00

CO 7.23 Curb and Gutter PCC, Variable Width, 9 IN 31 $70.00 $2,170.00 31.00 $2,170.00

CO 7.24 Remove/Replace Sidewalk 30 $20.00 $600.00 30.00 $600.00

CO 8.01C Traffic Control 1 $1,750.00 $1,750.00 1.00 $1,750.00

CO 8.14 Relocate H Signs 2 $75.00 $150.00 2.00 $150.00

CO 9.01A Type 1 Seed 1 $700.00 $700.00 1.00 $700.00

CO 9.22A River Rock 1 $790.00 $790.00 1.00 $790.00

CO 9.26A Median Brick Paver Edge Restraint 73 $28.00 $2,044.00 73.00 $2,044.00

CO 12.05A Painted Pavement Markings 1 $275.00 $275.00 1.00 $275.00

STOCKPILE MATERIAL

See attached documentation for breakdown.

# of Units Unit Price Extended Cost

$0.00

See Attached Spreadsheet

TOTAL

MATERIALS STORED SUMMARY

Description

TOTAL $13,868,075.68 $13,691,872.87

C:\Users\ttl\Desktop\PR35-2018-0815-CF University Ph 1.xlsm

PR35-2018-0815-CF University Ph 1.xlsm

Page 5 of 6-101-

Item H.2.c. 



0.2%

Pay Request 1-6

Pay Request 7

Pay Request 8

Pay Request 9

Pay Request 10

Pay Request 11

Pay Request 12

Pay Request 13

Pay Request 14

Pay Request 15

Pay Request 16

Pay Request 17

Pay Request 18

Pay Request 19

Pay Request 20

Pay Request 21

Pay Request 22

Pay Request 23

Pay Request 24

Pay Request 25

Pay Request 26

Pay Request 27

Pay Request 28

Pay Request 29

Pay Request 30

Pay Request 31

Pay Request 32

Pay Request 33

Pay Request 34

The amount

$500,990.73

$276,196.29

$296,394.91

$13,691,872.87

$20,000.00

-$18,117.00

Remaining Retainage

$18,947.50Approved Change Order 4

Approved Change Order 2

Total Earned Less Retainage

Approved Change Order 5 -$24,832.14

$13,691,872.87

Approved Change Order 3

PAY REQUEST SUMMARY

Total Approved Total Completed

$13,691,872.87

Approved Change Order 1

$0.00

Revised Contract Price

$15,366.00

-$11,500.00

Approved Change Order 8 $8,762.00

Approved Change Order 10 $17,837.00

Approved Change Order 9 $11,960.00

Aprroved Change Order 11 -$176,202.81

$0.00

$13,671,872.87

Contract Price $13,824,462.32

Materials Stored

Approved Change Order 6 $11,062.75

Approved Change Order 7 $14,127.25

$380,512.72

$403,891.67

$431,815.63

$285,462.18

$506,723.55

$155,715.48

$197,455.99

100.0%

$13,477,599.32

100.00%

$194,273.55
is recommended for approval for payment in accordance 
with the terms of the Contract. 

Amount Due This Request (Includes all retainage release except $20,000 for Boulder RAB repairs)

Percent Complete

$194,273.55

$638,897.59

Total Previously Approved (list each)

$264,643.89

Total Previously Approved

Percent of Contract Period Utilized (In Calendar Days, Based on Start Date and and 2017 Completion Date)

$172,855.75

$309,296.99

$124,009.65

$149,837.37

$349,305.90

$60,196.14

$1,410,752.04

$3,418,330.86

$1,065,039.96

$137,396.74

$230,569.71

$291,919.80

$396,799.14

$50,191.12

$242,820.43

$729,577.10

Jon Resler, P.E.

City Engineer

Adam C. Juel, P.E.

Lead Civil Engineer

Cunningham signature not required until final pay 

application. 

August 15, 2018

C:\Users\ttl\Desktop\PR35-2018-0815-CF University Ph 1.xlsm

PR35-2018-0815-CF University Ph 1.xlsm

Page 6 of 6-102-

Item H.2.c. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 15, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project 
  Project No. SW-000-3113 
  Bid Opening 
 
 
On Tuesday, August 14th, 2018 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 
2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project. One (1) bid was received from Feldman Concrete 
of Dyersville, Iowa in the amount of $38,923.88, which is 30% above the Engineer's 
Estimate of $29,884.18. Attached is a bid tab for your reference. 
 
The lack of bidders and the bid being above the Engineers estimate is concerning; 
however, the Engineering Division feels it can be attributed to fewer properties spaced 
over a wider area than in the 2017 Sidewalk Assessment Project. As a result of these 
findings, the Engineering Division recommends acceptance of this low bid from 
Feldman Concrete in the amount of $38,923.88. On September 4th, 2018, the Contract, 
Bonds and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
  
 

-103-

Item H.2.d. 



 



PROJECT BID TAB

PROJECT NAME: 2018 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT

CITY PROJECT NUMBER: SW - 000 - 3113

BID OPENING:August 14, 2018 (1)

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

BID EST. UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY PRICES PRICES PRICES PRICES

1 REMOVE SIDEWALK, P.C.C. S.F. 3,547.20 $1.75 $6,207.60 $2.25 $7,981.20

2 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH S.F. 2,598.50 $4.75 $12,342.88 $5.25 $13,642.13

3 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.F. 948.70 $5.75 $5,455.03 $6.50 $6,166.55

4 TOPSOIL, FURNISH AND SPREAD C.Y. 14.97 $65.00 $973.05 $75.00 $1,122.75

5 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING S.F. 1,207.5 $0.75 $905.63 $1.50 $1,811.25

6 WATER SERVICE CURB STOP ADJUSTMENT EACH 2.0 $250.00 $500.00 $300.00 $600.00

7 GRANULAR BACKFILL TONS 20.0 $25.00 $500.00 $30.00 $600.00

8 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1.0 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

TOTAL $29,884.18 TOTAL $38,923.88

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

ENGINEERING DIVISION

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE
Feldman Concrete

-105-

Item
 H

.2.d. 



 



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Administration Division

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
  

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council  

 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: August 15, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Aldrich Elementary School – Final Occupancy Request 

 
 
The Preliminary Plat for McMahill First Addition was approved by City Council on 
January 16, 2017. The Cedar Falls Community School District will be starting school on 
August 23rd which will create a unique coordination issue, access to the new elementary 
school itself. The schools contractor, Larson Construction of Independence, Iowa is 
currently finishing the public improvements and correcting their SWPPP at the 
elementary school. 
 
These special circumstances have impacted the timeline for the elementary school 
opening; therefore, staff is requesting City Council’s consideration of final occupancy for 
the Aldrich Elementary School prior to formal acceptance of all public improvements in 
McMahill First Addition. This is permitted by the Subdivision Code, Section 24-54(e) and 
has been done in the past. The most recent example was with Arbors Third Addition. 
 
Staff has been working closely with the school and its contractor on monitoring the 
progress of the improvements under construction. A final inspection of the public 
infrastructure will be completed during the summer of 2019. The final inspection is 
delayed until 2019 due to some broken concrete panels in the street that must be 
replaced before final acceptance. These particular repairs will be much easier to make 
when school is not in session. The City is working with the school’s contractor to 
address items identified in previous inspections prior to school opening. Final 
acceptance is anticipated following those corrections. 
 
 
Xc: Jon Resler, PE, City Engineer 
 Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

-107-

Item H.2.e. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 
Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 15, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: Levee/Floodwall System Improvements Project 
  City Project Number FL-000-1975 
  Change Order 
  
 
The City of Cedar Falls has awarded the Levee/Floodwall System Improvements 
Project to Iowa Bridge and Culvert, LC of Washington, Iowa. This contractor will be 
raising the level of flood protection along the length of the levee by approximately two 
(2) feet. The improvements to the system will involve both new structural walls as well 
as increased earthen sections. The levee is approximately 6,100 linear feet long, 
beginning at Center Street, running east and south along the Cedar River, and ending 
at the Western Homes Community just south of E. 9th Street. 
 
As introduced during the July 16, 2018 Council Committee of the Whole, attached is a 
change order for additional work for the Levee/Floodwall System Improvements Project 
in the amount of $45,755.82. The funding for this project, including change orders, will 
be provided by an Iowa Flood Management Program grant. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends approving and executing the 
change order with Iowa Bridge and Culver, LC for the Levee/Floodwall System 
Improvements Project.   
 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz Director of Community Development  
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 

-109-

Item H.2.f. 



 



-111-

Item H.2.f. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: August 14, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Redevelopment of 6607 University Avenue  
 
 
REQUEST: 
 

S-I, Shopping Center District Site and Facade Plan Review and 
Developmental Agreement 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

JDavis Properties LLC, owner; Levi Architecture 
 

LOCATION: 
 

6607 University Avenue 
 

 
PROPOSAL:   
JDavis Properties, LLC is completing the final build out for the remaining portion of the 
old Hy-Vee building on University Avenue. This includes three tenant spaces in 
approximately 16,000 ft² of commercial space.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
College Square Mall Development LLC (GK 
Development) owned the College Square Mall 
(including the Hy-Vee properties) from 2004-
2014. In 2013, GK Development created three 
lots through a minor subdivision plat: Parcels 
D, E & F. Parcel D is Hy-Vee Wine and Spirits, 
Parcel E is the existing Hy-Vee grocery store, 
and Parcel F is the former Hy-Vee store where 
Slumberland furniture is located. The current 
owner purchased the property in the winter of 
2016 for the development of the building on 
Parcel F.  
 
This property is S-1, Shopping Center District, 
similar to the Mall property. The purpose of 
this district is to provide for the development of shopping centers. A mandatory site plan 

Parcel 
F Parcel  

E 

P
ar

ce
l D

 

-113-

Item H.2.g. 



review before the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council is required for all 
new developments in the district. Elements under review include new building 
construction, vehicular access rerouting, significant parking changes and general design 
and orientation changes. (Section 29-148(5)(a)) 
 
In the winter of 2016, a redevelopment agreement was approved between the previous 
owner, the existing owner and the City. This agreement covered all existing Easements, 
Covenants and Restrictions (ECR) from the 2013 Minor Plat and the redevelopment of 
the old Hy-Vee building on Parcel F including the building remodel, signage, 
maintenance of common areas, building encroachment upon utility easement and 
development schedules. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS: 
Following are technical comments for the current plan: 
 
• Building Use & Parking 

The building, according to the Black Hawk County Assessor, is 59,763 square feet. 
The following is a parking breakdown for each tenant space in the building. 

 
Square Footage* Use* Employees* Required Provided 

43,442 Furniture 
store 

15 73  

5,320 Restaurant 10 40  
11,001 Retail stores NA 50  
59,763   163 189 

 
The parking plan for this development will change slightly along the west side of the 
building. Currently there are two rows of parking on each side of a center aisle. The 
only change for this project includes a three stall dumpster at the south end of the 
parking stalls along Boulder and a single stall dumpster in the middle of the west 
stalls. Otherwise, the parking plan for the 
entire development satisfies Ordinance 
requirements.  
  

• Easements 
A 30’ easement is located along the west 
side of Parcel F. The picture to the right is 
an excerpt of Exhibit D in the 
Developmental Procedures Agreement.  
The building encroaches on this easement 
approximately five feet. A 54” storm sewer 
and a 15” sanitary sewer are within this 
easement. The storm sewer was built in 
1956. The easement was recorded in May 
1966. The Black Hawk County Assessor’s 
information indicates the old Hy-Vee 

30’ 
easement 

-114-

Item H.2.g. 



building was built in 1969. The City has very few building permit details for this area. 
It is difficult to obtain much more information on what may have occurred and why 
the building encroaches five feet into the easement. The building is very close to the 
storm sewer line, likely within a few feet or less. At some point, maintenance and 
repair of the line will be needed. The easement provides for such occasions, 
protecting this public interest. Typically hard surfaces, landscaping and the like can 
be found over easements and would be the owner’s expense to address if the City 
impacts it in a utility repair. Should the City need to make repairs to the line, every 
effort will be made to avoid the building. 
 
The aforementioned Redevelopment Agreement approved in the winter of 2016 
included the following easement encroachment elements: 
 

1. The footprint of the existing building shall not be expanded to the west.  
2. Improvements, if any, made upon the easement area shall not disturb the 

City sanitary and storm sewer or other utilities positioned or to be 
positioned underground through the easement area. 

3. If required by then-applicable City ordinances or other City requirements, 
detailed plans for any such improvements shall be presented to and 
approved by the City before the improvements are constructed. 

4. Such improvements shall not change the ground elevation without City 
approval. 

 
It should be noted that the applicant provided video of the existing sanitary and 
storm sewer lines along the west side of the building. City staff is evaluating the 
videos and condition of the sewer pipes. At the end of the staff report is a letter from 
the property owner listing a number of conditions as it pertains to this project. In the 
event that the sewer is in need of repair, these repairs will be at the cost of the 
owner along with loss or replacement of any building improvements. A new 
agreement to cover these conditions will be submitted in conjunction with this site 
plan for City Council approval. 

 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
Encouraging re-use of the old Hy-Vee building is a high priority for the City. Vacant or 
underutilized property detracts from other development in the area and is a general 
drain on the vitality of a shopping center. This review is occurring to ensure zoning and 
all other applicable City requirements are met for a project that will be a welcome 
addition to the College Square shopping center. 
 
This project includes the buildout of three tenant suites in the western 1/3 of the 
building. Suite A is an internal tenant with frontage on the north side of the building. 
Suite B is situated at the northwest corner of the building and Suite C is at the 
southwest corner of the building. Retail stores will occupy Suite A and C and the owner 
is looking for a restaurant for Suite B. 
 

-115-

Item H.2.g. 



The building improvements include new storefronts on the north and west side of the 
building. In order to gain access into the west side, an elevated sidewalk and ramp is 
proposed. The elevated sidewalk and ramp will be constructed on a retaining wall 
abutting the end of the parking stalls. The sidewalk and ramp will be placed at the top of 
the retaining wall to cover a porous back fill and subdrain. There will be no footings in 
this elevated sidewalk and ramp that could interfere with the underground utilities and 
sewer line. The only building expansion into the easement includes a covered canopy 
for the storefront near the southwest corner of the building. This canopy will be 
designed with support posts beyond the easement area and can be removed if 
necessary. 
 
The design for Suite A 
includes new windows 
and entrance across 
the storefront. The 
lower portion of the 
facade will be covered 
with simulated wood 
composite panels 
covered with a 
standing seam metal 
roof/canopy. Wall signage will be placed above the canopy with additional transom 
windows above the entry. Suite B off the northwest corner of the building is currently a 
solid wall with no openings. The proposed design includes a new entry on the north side 
with a possible outdoor seating area. The design of the entry will be distinguished from 
the rest of the facade with metal panels in a complementary color and signage above 
the doorway. Windows will be added off the side of the front entry and continue around 
the west side of the building topped with awnings for shade. A possible idea includes a 
glass overhead door to open in warmer months that connects the interior seating area 
to the outdoor patio. Corner columns and a wainscot will be painted to match the color 
of the front entry. Additional signage is added off the corner of the building. Finally, 
Suite C is a retail space off the southwest corner of the building. This facade includes a 
painted band over the side entry. Again, the design of the entry will stand out from the 
rest of the facade with an added parapet wall over the doorway. The painted columns 
will be added on both sides of the doorway topped with an awning and signage. As 
previously mentioned, a metal canopy extends off the west side of the building for drop 
off donations. This awning is over the easement and the supporting posts are on the 
outside edge of the easement. In case of repairs to the utilities in this easement, the 
metal canopy is designed to be removed from the building.    
 
The remaining improvements to this property are covered in the 2016 redevelopment 
agreement. A provision of this agreement covers the parking lot improvements on the 
north side of the building that includes new island improvements and landscaping. The 
agreement reflects that the north separator island between the frontage road and 
parking lot was installed as a part of the University Avenue Reconstruction Project (by 
the City). The remaining divider island at the northeast corner of the parking lot and 

 

-116-

Item H.2.g. 



north parking lot island will be installed by the owner by the end of 2018 as part of the 
existing agreement. The driveway and south parking lot islands and landscaping were 
installed as part of the Slumberland project. 
 
All basic utility services are available to the property. The property owner/contractor is 
responsible to extend all utility services to the building. These utility extensions will be 
reviewed by CFU personnel as part of the building plan review. 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION SUMMARY 
Vote 
7/25/2018 

Chair Oberle introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background 
information. This development includes the build-out for the remaining 
portion of the old Hy-Vee building at 6607 University Avenue. He 
summarized the facade plan, parking arrangement and easement 
issues on this property.  

There were no comments by the Commission. The Commission 
recommended approval of the redevelopment plan at 6607 University 
Avenue. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the redevelopment 
plan for the west side of the building at 6607 University Avenue. The Community 
Development Department further recommends that the City Council approve the 
attached development agreement with JDavis Properties LLC and authorize the Mayor 
and City Clerk to execute this agreement. 
 
Attachments: Location Map 

Site Plan 
Facade Plans 
JDavis Developmental Agreement 

   
 
 

-117-

Item H.2.g. 



 



DEVLIN CIR

C-2

HWY-1

Rownd Park

Central
Park

Orchard Hill

Southdale
Park

Peet Jr
High School

Southdale Elementary
School

ORCHARD DR

W
ATERLO

O
 RD

M
C
C
L
A
IN
 D
R

MAPLEWOOD DR

LILAC LN

HAWTHORNE DR

E SEERLEY BLVD

T
U
C
S
O
N
 D
R

LILAC LANE

MELROSE DR

D
A
L L

A
S
 D
R

B
O
U
LD

E
R
 D
R

SUNNYSIDE DR

PIN OA
K DR

A
S
H
L
A
N
D
 A
V
E

V
A
LL

E
Y
 P
A
R
K
 D
R

R
O
Y
A
L 
D
R

E
A
S
T
 P
A
R
K
 R
D

B
R
IA
R
W
O
O
D
 D
R

K
N
O
LL

 R
ID
G
E
 D
R

CALUMET DR

C
A
R
L
T
O
N
 D
R

ELMRIDGE DR

F
A
IR
V
IE
W
 D
R

OREGON RD

H
O
LI
D
A
Y
 R
D

BERGSTROM BLVD

R
U
S
S
E
LL

 D
R

IDAHO RD

C
O
N
VA
IR
   
  L
N

BONITA BLVD

MAUCKER RD

LA
U
R
IN
D
A
 D
R

P
R
ID
E
M
O
R
E
 D
R

M
AR
YH
IL
L 
DR

COLORADO RD

LI
N
N
W
O
O
D
 D
R

ARIZONA RD

SUNNYSIDE

CIR

W
H
IT
E
 W

A
Y
 D
R

 

ACORN LN

G
R
O
V
E
 S
T

H
O
M
E
W
A
Y
 D
R

UTAH RD

W
O
O
D
R
ID
G
E
 D
R

M
E
L R

O
S
E
 C
T

L A
T
H
A
M
 P
L

D
A
LL

A
S
 D
R

WINDSOR DR

MADISON ST

 

D
A
L L

A
S
 D
R

UNIVERSITY AVE

CARLTO
N DR

 

COLORADO RD

R-1

S-1

R-3

RP

C-2
C-2

C-2

R-3

R-4

R-3

R-2

S-1

R-1

R-1
M-1

Redevelopment Plan for the Old Hy-Vee
store at 6607 University Avenue

1

Location
Map

Cedar Falls City Council
August 20, 2018

-119-

Item H.2.g. 



-120-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-121-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-122-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-123-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-124-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-125-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-126-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-127-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-128-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-129-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-130-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-131-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



6607 University Ave 
Redevelopment

University Avenue | Cedar Falls
FLOOR PLANN

SUITE C
(MERCANTILE)

5,462 SF

SUITE B
(ASSEMBLY)

5,320 SF

SUITE A
(BUSINESS)

5,109 SF

16,321 SF

-132-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



6607 University Ave 
Redevelopment

University Avenue | Cedar Falls

PERSPECTIVE VIEW
(WITH FUTURE TENANT)

-133-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



6607 University Ave 
Redevelopment

University Avenue | Cedar Falls

MTL. COPING STANDING SEAM
MTL. ROOF

PAINT EXIST. E.I.F.S.,
COLOR A

PAINT EXIST. FACE
BRICK, COLOR A

WOOD-LOOK
COMPOSITE PANELS

PREFIN. SHT.
MTL. CAP
CORRUGATED
MTL. PANELS

MTL. COPING

AWNING, TYP.

ALUM.  ENTRANCE
FRAMING

ALUM. WINDOW
FRAMING

PAINT EXIST.
FACE BRICK,
COLOR C

PAINT EXIST. E.I.F.S.,
COLOR A
ALUM. WINDOW
FRAMING

NEW CONCRETE PATIO
& RAILING

WOOD-LOOK
COMPOSITE PANELS

EXIST. RAMP & STAIR
TO REMAIN

BIKE RACK, TYP.

GLASS OVERHEAD
DOOR

EXIST. ADJACENT
BLDG. E.I.F.S.,
COLOR B

NORTH ELEVATION

-134-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



6607 University Ave 
Redevelopment

University Avenue | Cedar Falls

MTL. COPING

PAINT EXIST.
E.I.F.S., COLOR C

PAINT EXIST.
E.I.F.S., COLOR A

PAINT E.I.F.S.
BUMP-OUT,
COLOR A

AWNING, TYP.

PAINT EXIST. FACE
BRICK, COLOR B

MTL. CANOPYALUM. WINDOW
FRAMING

PAINT EXIST.
FACE BRICK,
COLOR A

PAINT EXIST.
FACE BRICK,
COLOR C

AWNING, TYP.

RAISED SIDEWALK
& RAILING

WEST ELEVATION

-135-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



6607 University Ave 
Redevelopment

University Avenue | Cedar Falls

TRASH ENCLOSURE

-136-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-137-

Item H.2.g. 



-138-

Item H.2.g. 



-139-

Item H.2.g. 



-140-

Item H.2.g. 



-141-

Item H.2.g. 



Preparer(PRIVATE} 
Information Michael R. Young 

Individual's Name 

3151 Brockway Road 
Street Address 

Waterloo 
City 

2-10-16 (adding exhibits only) 

(319) 234-4471 
Phone 

S-1 SHOPPING CENTER DISTRICT 
DEVELOPMENTAL PROCEDURES AGREEMENT 

This Developmental Procedures Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into this J 5 +ti 
day of f·daru = , 2016, by, between and among the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the 
"City"), College SqtJ e Mall Development, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("CSMD") 
and JDavis Properties, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company ("Davis"), for the purpose of 
prescribing plans and procedures for Parcel D [0.71 acre], Parcel E [7.51 acres] and Parcel F 
[4.54 acres] (including but not limited to the Building located thereon), all of Minor Subdivision 
Plat of College Square Mall First Addition, Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa, recorded on 
January 22, 2013 as Document #2013-15198, and being a part of the Northeast Quarter of 
Section 24, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., and a part of the Northwest 
Fractional Quarter of Section 19, Township 89 North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M., all in 
Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

RECITALS 

A. Presently CSMD is the record owner of the above-described real estate consisting of the 
aforementioned Parcels D, E and F. 

B. Parcels D, E and F were created when the Minor Subdivision Plat of College Square 
Mall First Addition (the "Subdivision") was approved and accepted by the City Council of Cedar 
Falls on January 14, 2013, and are located within an S-1 Shopping Center District. 

C. A Declaration of Easements, Covenants and Restrictions (the "ECR Declaration") was 
filed by CSMD in conjunction with the Subdivision that established a uniform system of 
development for Parcels D and F and for the future sale or lease of Parcels D, E and F, and 
created certain easements, covenants and restrictions applicable to Parcels D, E, and F, and 
certain uses and maintenance of all improvements located on Parcels D, E and F. The ECR 
Declaration was dated January 9, 2013, and consists of pages 5 through 23 of Doc. #2013- 
15198, which was filed with the Black Hawk County Recorder on January 22, 2013. 

D. Davis is a contract purchaser of Parcel F pursuant to the terms of a certain Purchase 
and Sale Agreement between CSMD as seller and Davis as purchaser effective September 1, 
2015. 

-142-

Item H.2.g. 



E. Davis wishes to improve Parcel F by remodeling and updating the vacant building 
located thereon, which was a Hy-Vee grocery store ("Building"). 

F. CSMD supports Davis' plan to improve Parcel F and understands that the closing on its 
sale of Parcel F to Davis is conditioned upon City's approval of Davis' remodeling plans and 
proposals with respect to Parcel F. 

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants stated herein, the City, CSMD and 
Davis agree as follows: 

1. Remodel of Building on Parcel F. Following the closing of the purchase of Parcel F from 
CSMD, Davis will remodel and update the Building consisting of approximately 60,000 square 
feet in accordance with the elevation drawings attached as Exhibit "A". The interior will be 
remodeled and upgraded to City building codes to provide space for a retail furniture store of 
approximately 40,000 square feet and several smaller retail spaces to be located in the 
northwesterly portion of the building with access on the north. The retail rental suites are likely 
to consist of no more than 20,000 square feet in total area. All work must meet all City building 
codes and Davis shall obtain a building permit from the City prior to beginning construction. 

2. Parcel F Signage. As part of the Davis remodeling project, signage on Parcel F consists 
of a wall sign on the north for the furniture store, and wall signs on the northwest corner -- one 
for each of the retail suites, all as conceptually shown on the elevation drawings (Exhibit "A"). In 
addition, a pylon sign will be installed near the northwest corner of the building. A rendering of 
the conceptual pylon sign is attached as Exhibit "B". All signage must meet City sign ordinance 
requirements, and Davis shall obtain a sign permit from the City for such signage prior to 
beginning installation. 

3. Parcel F Site Plan. As part of the Davis project, the existing parking lot will be restriped 
in accordance with the Site Plan attached as Exhibit "C". The Site Plan shows details of parking 
design and layout, landscaping, drives, sidewalks and other exterior features of Parcel F, which 
are unchanged from its present configuration, with the exception of: (a) certain tree plantings, 
consisting of between four (4) and six (6) trees along the west edge of Parcel F adjacent to 
Boulder Drive (the "Tree Plantings"); (b) proposed reconstruction by the City of Boulder Drive 
and its accompanying sidewalk and the portion of the access road that connects to Idaho Road 
in conjunction with the University Avenue Reconstruction project (the "University Avenue 
Project"); and (c} construction of an island along the north edge of Parcel F (the "New Island") 
with gaps in the New Island which align with the access aisles located between the rows of 
parking stalls in order to control the flow of vehicular traffic between Parcel F and such access 
road. The New Island improvements will be designed and constructed in substantial 
compliance with Exhibit C, and shall be compatible with final construction by the City of the 
University Avenue Project, and in no event shall the New Island and the Tree Plantings exceed 
a cost of $15,000.00 to Davis. Furthermore, minor repairs to curbing and lot surface will be 
made as necessary by Davis. The parties acknowledge that the proposed changes to Parcel F 
as reflected in Exhibits A, B and C are in compliance with certain City requirements only to the 
extent specifically noted in this Agreement. 

4. S-1 Zoning. The existing Parcel F improvements were constructed in 1969. The S-1 
zoning district was established by Cedar Falls Zoning Ordinance 1300, which was adopted in 
1970. Ordinance 1300 zoned the property which is now Parcel F as S-1 shopping center 
district. Under Section 29-148(6) of Ordinance 1300, all shopping centers in existence at the 

2 

-143-

Item H.2.g. 



time of the adoption of Ordinance No. 1300, including the improvements then in existence on 
Parcel F, were considered to have met all the requirements of S-1 zoning. Also, under 
Ordinance 1300, any new construction, additions, enlargements, etc., to structures within such 
shopping centers need only comply with the use and bulk regulations of the C-2 district. The 
building located on Parcel F and the proposed improvements thereto comply with S-1 zoning as 
it currently exists. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted as impairing the City's ability 
to amend its zoning ordinances or ensure compliance with then existing zoning requirements on 
a going-forward basis, With the following qualification: 

(a) To the extent the City Council alters the S-1 zoning applicable to Parcel F prior to the 
completion of the Project described in Section 8, pursuant to which alteration the Project would 
otherwise be deemed non-conforming under the new zoning regime, the Project shall be 
considered a pre-existing, non-conforming use with respect to the new zoning regime provided 
that the Project is completed within the timetable set forth in Section 8. 

5. Common Maintenance of Parcels D, E, and F. Pursuant to Section 2.2 (a) of the ECR 
Declaration, each owner of Parcels D, E, and F agrees to maintain all improvements on its 
respective parcel in good order and condition and state of repair to the standards of what is 
typical for a first-class shopping center and in compliance with all applicable laws. 

6. Building Encroachment upon Utility Easement. According to a December 18, 2012 
survey of what became the aforementioned Subdivision (of which Parcel Fis a part) prepared 
by licensed surveyor Michael R. Fagle (the "Survey"), the Building on Parcel F encroaches over 
and upon City of Cedar Falls easements to the west of the Building but shows no dimensions 
that would specify the extent of the encroachments. Mr. Fagle prepared a plat of Parcel F that 
shows the location and extent of Building encroachments upon City of Cedar Falls easements, 
as follows: that the west wall of the building encroaches over the thirty-foot Sanitary and 
Storm Sewer Eas.ement (Book 165, page 557) from a maximum of 5.15 feet to a minimum of 
4.68 feet. A copy of Mr. Fagle's plat showing the encroachments is attached hereto as Exhibit 
"D". The area of the encroachment is described as follows: 

The East 5.15 feet of the North 214 Feet of the South 267 Feet of that portion of the 
Sanitary and Storm Sewer Easement in favor of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(Miscellaneous Book 165, page 557) running over, under and across Parcel F of Minor 
Subdivision Plat of College Square Mall First Addition, Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, 
Iowa, recorded in Document #2013-15108. 

The City agrees that the encroachment of the existing Building upon the aforementioned City 
easement is permitted; that Davis, and its successors and assigns, are allowed to leave the 
existing Building undisturbed in its present location on Parcel F, and that Davis, and its 
successors and assigns, may add adjacent improvements over the easement area, such as 
sidewalks, awnings, overhangs, landscaping, parking areas and drives, at its own risk except: 

A. the footprint of the existing building shall not be expanded to the west; and 

B. improvements, if any, made upon the easement area shall not disturb the City 
sanitary and storm sewer lines or other utilities positioned or to be positioned 
underground through the easement area; and 

C. if required by then-applicable City ordinances or other City requirements, detailed 
plans for any such improvements shall be presented to and approved by the City before 
the improvements are constructed; and 

3 

-144-

Item H.2.g. 



D. such improvements shall not change ground elevation without City approval. 

CSMD and Davis understand and agree that in maintaining, repairing, replacing, or constructing 
existing or future utilities located or to be located within the easement area, the City will take 
reasonable steps to avoid damage to the Building on Parcel F, but the City shall not be liable for 
damage to the Building or related improvements caused by such activity conducted within the 
easement area that is not the result of any negligent acts or omissions of the City, its 
employees, agents, contractors or subcontractors. The parties expressly agree that if the City 
cannot maintain, repair, replace, or construct existing or future utilities located or to be located 
within the easement area without causing damage to the Building or related improvements, 
even through the exercise of reasonable care, that the City shall nonetheless be allowed to 
maintain, repair, replace, or construct existing or future utilities in the easement area and shall 
not be responsible for any resulting damage to the Building or related improvements. 

7. Storm Water. The City, Davis and CSMD agree that no additional storm water detention 
work is required on Parcels D, E, and F at this time on the basis that the extent of the work 
currently anticipated constitutes minor repairs and that the addition of small islands reduces 
impervious surface areas and does not result in additional storm water runoff. Projects beyond 
the scope of those identified herein may be subject to the storm water ordinance, depending 
upon their scope. 

8. Timetable for Davis Project - Parcel F. The timetable for the Davis Project with respect 
to Parcel F shall commence upon the closing of the purchase of Parcel F in the first quarter of 
2016 with some of the work timed as reasonable or necessary to coincide with the University 
Avenue Project, including the proposed roundabout at the intersection of University Avenue and 
Boulder Drive, which is likely to occur in late 2016 or sometime in 2017. The Project will consist 
of the following: 

A. Remodel 40,000 square feet (approximately) of the building into a Slumberland 
furniture store. Complete interior demising walls to separate approximately 20,000 
square feet for tenant retail suites in the northwest corner of the building. 

B. Improve the building exterior as shown on Exhibit "A". 

C. Repair as necessary and restripe the north parking lot with any necessary 
refreshing of existing landscaping shown on Exhibit "C". 

D. The Tree Plantings and New Island improvements shall be completed not later 
than December 31, 2018. 

9. Timetable for Parking Lot Improvements to Parcels D & E. CSMD agrees to maintain 
the north parking lot of Parcels D & E in good order and state of repair. By December 31, 2023, 
CSMD or its successor in interest, as owner of Parcels D & E, will construct islands along the 
north edges of Parcels D & E (the "D & E Islands") with gaps which align with the access aisles 
located between the rows of parking stalls in order to control the flow of vehicular traffic between 
Parcels D & E and such access road. The D & E Islands will be designed and constructed in a 
similar manner with adjacent parking lot improvements such as the New Island for Parcel F 
described in Paragraph 3 above, which New Island is depicted in Exhibit C; shall be in 
conformance with City code; and shall be subject to prior approval by the City. In no event shall 
the D & E Islands exceed a cost of $10,000.00 to CSMD or its successor in interest. 

4 

-145-

Item H.2.g. 



10. Permits and Off-Street Parking. Upon approval of this Agreement by the City Council of 
City, and upon execution of this Agreement by all parties, the City will issue all necessary 
building and occupancy permits for the Project improvements described in Paragraph 8, 
provided that Davis and the Project are in compliance with all applicable building, electrical, gas, 
plumbing, mechanical and fire codes contained in Chapters 7 and 11 of the City Code of 
Ordinances. The City acknowledges that Parcel F and the project improvements shown on 
Exhibits "A" and "C" satisfy the off-street parking requirements of Section 29-177 of the City 
Code of Ordinances, as currently presented in Exhibit F. 

11. Notices. All notices given under this Agreement shall be deemed to have been properly 
given when addressed as provided below and shall be deemed effective: (i) upon receipt if sent 
by first-class United States mail, postage prepaid, or (ii) one (1) business day after being sent 
by a recognized overnight delivery service such as Federal Express or United Postal Service. 
Each party shall have the right to change its address by giving the other party written notice 
thereof. 

Notices required to be given to the City shall be addressed to: 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
Attention: Stephanie Houk Sheetz 

Interim Director of Community Development 

Notices required to be given to Davis shall be addressed to: 

JDavis Properties, L.L.C. 
1602 290th St. 
Brandon, IA 52210 
Attention: Jonathan Davis, Manager 

with a copy to: 

David R. Mason 
Redfern, Mason, Larsen & Moore, P.L.C. 
415 Clay St. 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

Notices required to be given to CSMD shall be addressed to: 

College Square Mall Development, LLC 
GK Development, Inc. 
257 E Main St., Suite 200 
Barrington, IL 60010 

with a copy to: 

Michael R. Young 
Dutton, Braun, Staack & Hellman, PLC 
3151 Brockway Road 

5 

-146-

Item H.2.g. 



Waterloo, IA 50701 

12. Entire Agreement, Counterparts and Amendments. This Agreement, together with the 
Exhibits as incorporated, shall constitute the entire Agreement between the parties pertaining to 
the subject matter hereof and supersedes all other prior agreements, representations and 
understandings, both written and oral, except to the extent incorporated in this Agreement. This 
Agreement may be executed in any number of counterpart copies, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but which taken together shall constitute a single instrument. No 
amendment, modification or alteration of any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement shall 
be binding unless the same shall be in writing and duly executed by the parties. No waiver of 
any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to or shall constitute a waiver 
of any other provisions hereof (whether or not similar). 

13. Severability and Construction. If any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement are 
found to be invalid or unenforceable, whether by operation of law, order of court or otherwise, 
such term or provision shall be ineffective or unenforceable only to the limited extent required by 
law without affecting, in any manner, the remaining terms or provisions of this Agreement or the 
validity or enforceability thereof. Words or any gender used in this Agreement shall be held and 
construed to include any other gender, and words in the singular number shall be held and 
construed to include the plural, and vice versa, unless the context requires otherwise. 

14. Governing Law. THIS AGREEMENT AND ALL TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY 
THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, CONSTRUED UNDER, AND ENFORCED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF IOWA, WITHOUT REGARD TO ITS 
CONFLICTS OF LAWS PRINCIPLES. 

15. Submission to Jurisdiction and Venue. THE PARTIES HEREBY SUBMIT TO THE 
EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE IOWA DISTRICT COURT FOR BLACK 
HAWK COUNTY, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ALL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF 
OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED 
HEREBY. EACH PARTY WAIVES ANY OBJECTIONS WHICH IT MAY HAVE TO THE 
LAYING OF VENUE OF ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING IN THE IOWA 
DISTRICT COURT FOR BLACK HAWK COUNTY. 

16. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 

WHEREFORE, the parties have entered into this Agreement as of the date first above written. 

[Signature Pages Follow] 

6 

-147-

Item H.2.g. 



(SEAL) CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

c::/___,._ r. bb-· . ' 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

By: 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the I(,, !IA day of F;,J,,-� , 
2016, by James P. Brown as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of thety of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. � 

_ � 

Notary Publi in nd for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

i- MANDYTHURM � Y. Commission Number 754456 
• • My commission Expires 

o August 26, 2017 

7 

"CITY" 

-148-

Item H.2.g. 



STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss 

"DAVIS" 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on 
Jonathan Davis as Manager of JDavis Properties, L.L.C. 

l MARY ANN MILLER 
,. . ston Number 196329 l- comm1s , . 5 • My Commission Expire 

May 11, 2010 

8 

-149-

Item H.2.g. 



College Square Mall Development, LLC 

By: GK Development, In 
Its: Manager 

By: 

Its: 

"CSMD" 
\ 

STATE OF 1111 NO:") , COUNTY OF C.,cc V, 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on f=-b,ua,L( 1 '2..., z.o 14' , 2016, 
by Cb d. p.,o \:'>.no\ 9 ('Q) 1 � u 
as \? e: ;s ,de.t )\ 
of GK Development, Inc., Manager of College Square Mall Development, LLC. 

n1 on j 
MARV H GRANT 

Ottlcial Seal 
Notary Public - State of Illinois 

My Commission Expires Jun 19, 2020 

9 

-150-

Item H.2.g. 



� .. 

EXHIBIT A 
[Building Elevations] 

10 

-151-

Item H.2.g. 



9' 10" 

EXHIBIT B 
[Signage] 

11 

-152-

Item H.2.g. 



' . 
I - �'/ 

,----�-'.,"-'---·--- 

EXHIBITC 
[Islands] 

CJ 

I 
ri 

!I \ . 
I 

JON DAVIS 
SLUMBERlAND FACADES 

12 

-153-

Item H.2.g. 



EXHIBITD 
[Encroachments] 

ENCROACHMENT PARCEL F 
MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAT 
COLLEGE SQUARE MALL 

FIRST ADDITION 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

J 
IDAHO ROAD 

110' 
MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAT 

COLLEGE SQUARE MALL 
FIRST ADDITION 

DOCUMENT 2013 00015198 
PARCEL "F» 

I 
I 

I 
I 

' ' I 
�'1.84' 

_ -----�-}L --=-A � -- . 
I : I 

I 

' I 
I 
I 

��--,·�LI- rL _ 
IE--5.07' 

w 
> 
Q: 
c 
Q: w c 
..J 
:::> 
0 
ID 

EXISTING 30' SANITARY 
&. STORl,f SEWER EASEMENT 
FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
MIStaLAHEOUS BOOK 165, 
PAGE 557 18UILDING ENCROACHES 
ON THIS EASEMENT! 

WEST LINE OF THE � 
EAST 1/4 OF THE • 
NORTHEAST I/ 4 OF 
SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP 
89 NORTH, RANGE 14 
WEST Of THE STH P ,M, 

EXISTING 30' X 210' CROSS EASEMENT 
BK, 11 PAGE 59 SUPERCEOED ANO AMENOED 
BY EASEMENT AGREEMENT BK, 5, PAGE 96 
(THE BUILDING DOES NOT ENCROACH ON 
THIS EASEMENT) 

PREPARED BY:MICHAEL R.FAGLE 
PROFESSIONAL LICENSED SURVEYOR 
IOWA LICENSE NUMBER 8505 

13 

-154-

Item H.2.g. 



EXHIBITF 
[Parking Details] 

Square 
Footage* Use* Employees* Required Provided 

36,984 Furniture 15 82 
store 

2,952.8 Restaurant 10 25 
15,089 Retail stores NA 68 
557.5 Demolish NA NA 

4,179.7 Not identified NA NA 
59,763 175 181 

14 

-155-

Item H.2.g. 



-156-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-157-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-158-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-159-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-160-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-161-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-162-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-163-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-164-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-165-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-166-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-167-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



6607 University Ave 
Redevelopment

University Avenue | Cedar Falls
FLOOR PLANN

SUITE C
(MERCANTILE)

5,462 SF

SUITE B
(ASSEMBLY)

5,320 SF

SUITE A
(BUSINESS)

5,109 SF

16,321 SF

-168-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



6607 University Ave 
Redevelopment

University Avenue | Cedar Falls

PERSPECTIVE VIEW
(WITH FUTURE TENANT)

-169-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



6607 University Ave 
Redevelopment

University Avenue | Cedar Falls

MTL. COPING STANDING SEAM
MTL. ROOF

PAINT EXIST. E.I.F.S.,
COLOR A

PAINT EXIST. FACE
BRICK, COLOR A

WOOD-LOOK
COMPOSITE PANELS

PREFIN. SHT.
MTL. CAP
CORRUGATED
MTL. PANELS

MTL. COPING

AWNING, TYP.

ALUM.  ENTRANCE
FRAMING

ALUM. WINDOW
FRAMING

PAINT EXIST.
FACE BRICK,
COLOR C

PAINT EXIST. E.I.F.S.,
COLOR A
ALUM. WINDOW
FRAMING

NEW CONCRETE PATIO
& RAILING

WOOD-LOOK
COMPOSITE PANELS

EXIST. RAMP & STAIR
TO REMAIN

BIKE RACK, TYP.

GLASS OVERHEAD
DOOR

EXIST. ADJACENT
BLDG. E.I.F.S.,
COLOR B

NORTH ELEVATION

-170-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



6607 University Ave 
Redevelopment

University Avenue | Cedar Falls

MTL. COPING

PAINT EXIST.
E.I.F.S., COLOR C

PAINT EXIST.
E.I.F.S., COLOR A

PAINT E.I.F.S.
BUMP-OUT,
COLOR A

AWNING, TYP.

PAINT EXIST. FACE
BRICK, COLOR B

MTL. CANOPYALUM. WINDOW
FRAMING

PAINT EXIST.
FACE BRICK,
COLOR A

PAINT EXIST.
FACE BRICK,
COLOR C

AWNING, TYP.

RAISED SIDEWALK
& RAILING

WEST ELEVATION

-171-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



6607 University Ave 
Redevelopment

University Avenue | Cedar Falls

TRASH ENCLOSURE

-172-

Item
 H

.2.g. 



-173-

Item H.2.g. 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AN S-1 ZONING DISTRICT SITE PLAN 
FOR THE REDEVELOPMENT OF THE WEST SIDE OF THE BUILDING 
AT 6607 UNIVERSITY AVENUE, AND APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
WITH JDAVIS PROPERTIES L.L.C. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has considered 

approving an S-1 zoning district site plan for the redevelopment of the west side of 6607 
University Avenue, and approving and authorizing execution of a Development 
Agreement with JDavis Properties, L.L.C., and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 

interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve said site plan and approve and 
authorize said Agreement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that said site plan and Agreement are hereby approved and 
the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 

ADOPTED this    day of    , 2018. 
 

 
        
James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
        
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-175-

Item H.2.g. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
MEMORANDUM

Planning & Community Services Division

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: August 16, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Amendment to Agreement for Private Development 

 

On October 16, 2017, City Council approved an Agreement for Private Development 
with BAJR Enterprises, L.L.C. to construct a new 10,615 square foot building for a new 
fleet maintenance facility within the Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park. Section 3.4 of 
the Agreement indicates a start date of the project of January 1, 2018 and a completion 
date of the project of October 1, 2018.  
 
Due to a family medical emergency that required the owners’ immediate attention, the 
project was not able to be started by the start date and will not be finished by the 
completion date. The owners have indicated that they still plan to move forward with the 
project, but are requesting that the start date and completion date be amended to reflect 
their updated schedule. They have requested a new minimum start date of December 
31, 2018, and a completion date by no later than July 31, 2019. That will give the 
owners time to begin planning for construction during the next couple of months, with 
construction to begin this fall and completion of the project by next summer.  
 
Attached is an Amendment to Agreement for Private Development, which identifies the 
section in the Agreement that is proposed to be modified.  It indicates what the current 
start and completion dates are, along with the new start and completion dates. This 
agreement was reviewed and approved by Kevin Rogers, City Attorney. 
 
The Community Development Department recommends approving the Amendment to 
Agreement for Private Development with BAJR Enterprises, L.L.C. 
 
If you have any questions regarding the proposed Amendment, please contact the 
Community Development Department. 
 
Xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

-177-

Item H.2.h. 



 



 
 
 

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 
 
 

 This Amendment to the Agreement for Private Development is made and entered 
into effective on this _____ day of ___________________, 2018, by and between BAJR 
Enterprises, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company, and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(hereinafter the "City"), 
 
 WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, BAJR Enterprises, L.L.C. has entered into a certain Agreement for 
Private Development with the City, dated October 16, 2017 (hereinafter the 
“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 3.4 of the Agreement states that the Minimum 
Improvements shall be undertaken by no later than January 1, 2018, and completed by 
no later than October 1, 2018; and 
 
 WHEREAS, BAJR Enterprises, L.L.C., has requested that the commencement 
and completion dates be amended; and 
 
WHEREAS, Amending the commencement and completion dates would allow for the 
construction of the Minimum Improvements, which are in the vital and best interests of 
the residents of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 3.4 of the Agreement allows for the commencement and 
completion dates to be modified as mutually agreed upon and in writing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, BAJR Enterprises, L.L.C. and the City are in agreement with the 
proposed amendment to the Agreement, and now desire to reduce their agreement to 
writing. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. Section 3.4, Commencement and Completion of Construction, of the 
Agreement shall be modified to read as follows:  

 
“Subject to Unavoidable Delays, the Developer shall cause construction 
of the Minimum Improvements to be undertaken by no later than the 31st 
day of December, 2018, and completed (i) by no later than the 31st day of 
July, 2019, or (ii) by such other date as the parties shall mutually agree 
upon in writing.  Time lost as a result of Unavoidable Delays shall be 
added to extend the completion date by a number of days equal to the 
number of days lost as a result of Unavoidable Delays.  However, an 
extension of the completion of the Minimum Improvements shall not affect 
the date upon which the Assessor's Minimum Actual Value shall become 
effective.  All work with respect to the Minimum Improvements to be 
constructed or provided by the Developer on the Development Property 

-179-

Item H.2.h. 



 2 

shall be in conformity with the Construction Plans as submitted by the 
Developer and approved by the City.  The Developer agrees that it shall 
permit designated representatives of the City to enter upon the 
Development Property during the construction of the Minimum 
Improvements to inspect such construction.” 
 
2.  The parties hereby acknowledge and agree that all of the terms 

and conditions of the Agreement, including Exhibits, remain the same and are 
hereby ratified and confirmed, except as otherwise expressly amended herein. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, BAJR Enterprises, L.L.C. and the City have executed 
this Agreement, to be effective as of the date stated at the beginning of this Agreement, 
which shall be the date the last party to this Agreement executes this Agreement. 
 
  

BAJR Enterprises, L.L.C., an Iowa limited 
 liability company 
  
  
 
 By:   
 Stephen C. Keys, Member 
 
 
 By:   
 Andrea J. Keys, Member 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 
 
 This record was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of 
_______________, 2018, by Stephen C. Keys, and Andrea J. Keys, as Members of 
BAJR Enterprises, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company. 
 
 
  ___ 
 Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa  
My Commission Expires: 
 
____________________________ 
 

-180-

Item H.2.h. 



 3 

 
  
 
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 
 
 By  
 James P. Brown, Mayor 
  
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss. 
 
 This record was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of 
_______________, 2018, by James P. Brown, as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, as 
City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
   
 Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
My Commission Expires: 
 
____________________________ 
 
 

-181-

Item H.2.h. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Lisa Ahern, Planner I 

 DATE: August 16, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Amendments to Admin Plan for Housing Choice Voucher Program  
 
INTRODUCTION 
The Housing Choice Voucher program is the federal government's major program for 
assisting very low-income families, the elderly, and the disabled to afford decent, safe, and 
sanitary housing in the private market. Individuals apply for the program and then are 
placed on a waiting list.  The Cedar Falls Housing Commission met July 10, 2018 to discuss 
current waiting list management practices for the program.   
 
Agencies that administer Housing Choice Voucher Programs may establish local 
preferences for serving priority populations. The Housing Commission has reviewed how 
the local preferences are currently administered and recommends changes as outlined in 
this memo.  Changes proposed include:  
 

1. Adding acceptable documentation for claiming the Residency Preference.  
2. Categorizing disabled / elderly applicants into the Preference 1 group, to comply 

with federal program requirements. 
3. Closing the waiting list through December 31, 2018. 

 
CURRENT LOCAL PREFERENCES 
The waiting list assigns an applicant to one of three local preferences, described below.  
Applicants are contacted when their name comes to the top of the list and a final eligibility 
determination is made at that time for program admission.  The existing preference 
categories, descriptions and number of current applications are listed below.  
 

PREFERENCE 
# DESCRIPTION # OF 

APPS 

1 
Elderly / Disabled / Families with Dependent Children - live 
or work in Cedar Falls (Residency Preference) 57 

2 
Elderly/ Disabled / Families with Dependent Children – do 
not live or work in Cedar Falls.  264 

3 Single Applicants – non-elderly / non-disabled / no 
dependents)  55 

-183-

Item H.2.i. 



ANALYSIS – ACCEPTABLE DOCUMENTATION FOR CLAIMING RESIDENCY 
PREFERENCE 
 
Preference 1 (Residency Preference) is currently applied to applicants who have a legal 
domicile in Cedar Falls or who work within the city limits of Cedar Falls. Preference 1 
applicants are served before all other categories, regardless of date and time of application.  
The intent of the Residency Preference is to serve local residents first and to, ideally, house 
them in place when they are experiencing financial hardships.  
 
The Residency Preference is currently documented by a lease or utility bill in the name of 
the applicant or documentation that the applicant works for a Cedar Falls business.  There 
are a number of households who are on the Preference 2 who are currently living in a 
doubled-up situation with a local Cedar Falls resident (e.g. adults and children living with 
parents/grandparents).  Applicants in these situations cannot currently claim the Residency 
Preference because they do not have a lease or utility bill in their name.   It can take several 
years (three or more) to serve these applicants with a housing voucher because they 
cannot claim local residency. 
 
In an effort to more broadly serve the Cedar Falls community, staff recommends accepting 
additional documentation for claiming the Residency Preference.  For example, official 
enrollment of a household member or members at a local Cedar Falls school is good 
evidence that the household is residing in Cedar Falls. Some other jurisdictions also accept 
receipt of two or more pieces of official mail, such as a bank statement or letter from a 
government agency and a notarized statement from a local resident that the applicant is 
currently residing at their home.   
 
Recommendation: Residency preference is currently documented by items 1, 2, or 3 
below.  The Housing Commission recommends allowing a fourth method of 
documenting residency, as stated below:  
 

1. Evidence of legal domicile by a lease in the name of the applicant; 
2. Evidence of legal domicile by a utility bill in the name of the applicant;  
3. Evidence of working in Cedar Falls by pay stub or letter from employer; or 

 
4. ** NEW ** Evidence of dependent children enrollment in a Cedar Falls 

school along with two pieces of official mail and a notarized statement from 
the Cedar Falls homeowner / lease holder. 

  
  
 
ANALYSIS – ELDERLY AND DISABLED HOUSEHOLDS AND RESIDENCY / WORKING 
PREFERENCE 
 
The Residency Preference is applied to households who either have a legal domicile in or 
who work in Cedar Falls.   Many single elderly and disabled applicants do not qualify for 
Preference 1 because of their inability to secure or maintain employment.  This creates a 
disadvantage to these groups, resulting in extremely long wait list times and creates an 
unintended impediment to housing. 
 

-184-

Item H.2.i. 



Staff recently became aware of HUD guidance (24 CFR 960.206(b)(2) which states if local 
communities have adopted a residency preference which allows for work, then applicants 
who are elderly or disabled must be given the benefit of the working preference.  This is in 
accordance with non-discrimination and equal opportunity requirements.  The existing 
Waiting List has a number of applicants who are elderly and/or disabled who are on the 
Preference 2 list. Therefore, elderly and disabled households listed in the Preference 2 
category should be moved to the Preference 1 category to comply with HUD guidelines.    
 
Recommendation:  The Housing Commission recommends modifying the existing 
Local Preference Categories to comply with HUD guidance by moving all elderly and 
disabled applicants to the Preference 1 list.  The new listing of local preferences 
would be as follows: 
 
PREFERENCE 

# DESCRIPTION 

1 
Elderly / Disabled / Families with Dependent Children (Residency 
Preference)  

2 
Families with Dependent Children – (Non-Residents)   

3 Single Applicants – (non-elderly / non-disabled / no dependents)  

 
CLOSING THE WAITING LIST 
 
The waiting list has 376 active applications.  Due to the number of existing applications and 
the time required to make changes as outlined in this memo, it is recommended to close the 
waiting list for a period of time. By closing the waiting list, staff resources can be directed 
toward issuing more vouchers and focusing on serving existing applicants.   
 
Recommendation: The Housing Commission recommends closing the waiting list 
through December 31, 2018.    
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Karen Howard, Community Services Manager 
 

-185-

Item H.2.i. 



 



RESOLUTION NO.       
 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE CEDAR FALLS LOW RENT HOUSING AGENCY 
ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN TO MODIFY THE LOCAL PREFERENCES AND TO 

TEMPORARILY CLOSE THE WAITING LIST. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Housing Choice Voucher program (also known as Section 8) is a program of 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  It is the government's major 
program for assisting very low-income families, the elderly, and the disabled to afford decent, safe, 
and sanitary housing in the private market.  

 
WHEREAS, individuals apply for the program and are placed on a waiting list. Agencies that 

administer Housing Choice Voucher Programs may establish local preferences for serving priority 
populations.    

 
WHEREAS, the Cedar Falls Housing Commission convened on July 10, 2018 to review how 

local preferences are currently administered.    
 

WHEREAS,  Preference 1 (Residency Preference) is currently applied to applicants who are 
elderly, disabled or families with dependent children if they have legal domicile in Cedar Falls or who 
work within the city limits of Cedar Falls.   
 

WHEREAS, to better serve the Cedar Falls community, the Housing Commission 
recommended in their July 10, 2018 meeting to accept additional documentation to establish the local 
Residency Preference.  

 
 WHEREAS, the Housing Commission also recommends a change to local preference policy to 
comply with HUD guidance (24 CFR 960.206(b)(2) which states if local communities have adopted a 
residency preference which allows for work, then applicants who are elderly or disabled must be given 
the benefit of the working preference.   
 

WHEREAS, The waiting list as of 7/31/18 was 381 applicants.  Due to the number of existing 
applications on file, the Housing Commission recommends closing the waiting list for a period of time, 
so that staff resources can be directed toward issuing more vouchers and focusing on serving existing 
applicants.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA, to amend the Cedar Falls Low Rent Housing Agency Administrative Plan to 
modify the local preferences and to temporarily close the waiting list as set forth below: 
 

1. That the Residency Preference will be assigned to applicant family households with 
dependent children under the age of 18, who provide evidence of residency at the time of 
application by one of the following methods:    

 
a. Evidence of legal domicile by a lease in the name of the applicant; 
b. Evidence of legal domicile by a utility bill in the name of the applicant;  
c. Evidence of working in Cedar Falls by pay stub or letter from employer; or 
d. Evidence of dependent children enrollment in a Cedar Falls school along with two 

pieces of official mail and a notarized statement from the Cedar Falls homeowner / 
lease holder with whom the family resides. 

-187-

Item H.2.i. 



 
 
 

2. That  Section 5.3 of the Cedar Falls Low Rent Housing Agency Administrative Plan is 
hereby amended to update the Local Preferences in accordance with program regulations:   

 
                  5.3 PREFERENCES 

 
The Low Rent Housing Agency of Cedar Falls will use the date and time of each 
application to determine the admissions sequence for applicants within the order of 
each of the below described preferences*: 
 
DISPLACED 
Individuals or families displaced by government action or whose dwelling has been 
extensively damaged or destroyed as a result of a disaster declared or otherwise 
formally recognized pursuant to federal disaster relief laws.   Displaced individuals or 
families will be served before all other preference categories. 
 
PREFERENCE 1 
 
a. Elderly: Age 62 and older at time of application. 

 
b. Disabled:  As verified by receipt of disability benefits or recent verification from 

physician.   
 

c. Families with dependent children under the age of 18 who are residents in the Low 
Rent Housing Agency of Cedar Falls’ jurisdiction.  As verified by one of the 
following methods at time of application: 

 
i. Evidence of legal domicile by a lease in the name of the applicant; 
ii. Evidence of legal domicile by a utility bill in the name of the applicant;  
iii. Evidence of working in Cedar Falls by pay stub or letter from employer; or 
iv. Evidence of dependent children enrollment in a Cedar Falls school along 

with two pieces of official mail and a notarized statement from the Cedar 
Falls homeowner / lease holder with whom the family resides. 

 
PREFERENCE 2 
a. Families with dependent children under the age of 18 who are not residents of in 

the Low Rent Housing Agency of Cedar Falls’ jurisdiction. 
 
PREFERENCE 3  
a. Single, non-elderly, or non-disabled families with no dependent children under the 

age of 18 that do not otherwise fall into a described preference, regardless of 
residency. 
 
*The use of a residency preference does not have the purpose or effect of delaying 
or otherwise denying admission to the Housing Choice Voucher Program based on 
the race, color, ethnic origin, gender, religion, disability or age of any member of an 
applicant family. 

 
 

3. That the Waiting List for the Housing Choice Voucher Program is closed until December 
31, 2018.  No new applications will be accepted during this time. 

 

-188-

Item H.2.i. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND APPROVED this   day of August, 2018. 
 
     
            
     James P. Brown, Mayor 
 
 
 ATTEST 
 
       
Jacqueline Danielsen, CMC, City Clerk 

-189-

Item H.2.i. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 FROM: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager  

 DATE: August 16, 2018 

SUBJECT: Amendment to the Restrictions Agreement for the BlackHawk Hotel and 
proposed Subordination Agreement with Lincoln Savings Bank 

 
As part of the IEDA’s CDBG Disaster Recovery Housing grant program, the City approved a 
forgivable loan to the BlackHawk Hotel, subject to a restrictions agreement to ensure that 
during the period of affordability a minimum of 51% of the rental units produced are occupied 
by persons or households whose incomes are at or below 80% of the area median income 
limits established by HUD for the City of Cedar Falls. The period of affordability extends five 
years from the date the agreement was recorded. The agreement extends until June 25, 
2020, at which time the loan is forgiven.  
 
As part of the restrictions agreement, there is a clause that prevents sale or transfer of the 
property to another party. The hotel was recently sold to Main Street Hotels LC, who has 
agreed to abide by the conditions and obligations of the restrictions agreement. The IEDA has 
indicated that there is not a program requirement that restricts sale or transfer of the property. 
Therefore staff recommends approval of an amendment to the restrictions agreement that 
allows sale or transfer of the property provided the new owner agrees to abide by all the 
program requirements as outlined in the original restrictions agreement.  
 
In addition, the new owner has entered into a mortgage with Lincoln Savings Bank. Lincoln 
Savings Bank requests that the City agree to the subordination of our forgivable loan to their 
mortgage on the property. The proposed subordination agreement is also subject to our 
restrictions agreement. The City Attorney has reviewed these documents and finds them to be 
in order.  
 
Staff recommends approval of the amendment to the restrictions agreement and approval of 
the attached subordination agreement to facilitate the transfer of the hotel to the new owners.   
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact this office. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

-191-

Item H.2.j. 



-192-

Item H.2.j. 



-193-

Item H.2.j. 



-194-

Item H.2.j. 



-195-

Item H.2.j. 



 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Prepared By: Nathan D. Miller, P.O. Box 178, Waterloo, IA  50704-0178 (319)234-1766 
After Recording Return To: Nathan D. Miller, P.O. Box 178, Waterloo, IA  50704-0178 
 
     
 SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT 
 

WHEREAS, BlackHawk Hotel, L.L.C., executed a forgivable mortgage to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa (hereinafter, the “City”), on the real estate at 115 Main Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(hereinafter, the “Premises”), legally described as: 

 
The North 88 feet of Lots Nos. 2 and 3 in Block No. 1 in the Original Plat, in the City of 
Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa, 

 
which was filed June 25, 2015, as Document No. 2015-21171, in the office of the Black Hawk 
County Recorder; and 

 
WHEREAS, BlackHawk Hotel, L.L.C. conveyed the Premises to Main Street Hotels LC, 

(“Buyer”); and 
 

WHEREAS, Buyer agreed to purchase the Premises subject to the aforementioned 
mortgage in favor of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and also subject to a certain Restrictions 
Agreement dated June 8, 2015 between BlackHawk Hotel, L.L.C. and the City, also filed as Doc. 
No. 2015-00021172, and as said Restrictions Agreement may be amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, Buyer executed a mortgage on April 27, 2018 to Lincoln Savings Bank 
securing $2,800,000.00, on the Premises. Said mortgage was filed April 30, 2018, as Document 
No. 2018-17447 in the Office of the Black Hawk County Recorder; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the parties hereto that the above mortgage to Lincoln 
Savings Bank be a lien prior to the lien of the City against the real estate legally described as: 
 

The North 88 feet of Lots Nos. 2 and 3 in Block No. 1 in the Original Plat, in the City of 
Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00) and other good 

and valuable consideration, the City does hereby subordinate the lien of its said mortgage to the 
lien of Lincoln Savings Bank, and that the lien of the said mortgage of Lincoln Savings Bank, shall 
be prior, paramount, and superior to any claim of right or title to the said Premises on the part of the 
City. Neither BlackHawk Hotel, L.L.C. nor the City will exercise any rights under their respective 
mortgages described above with regard to said Premises in any manner which would detrimentally 
affect the other party’s mortgage, except to enforce their respective rights under said mortgages in 
the event of Buyer’s default. Nothing herein shall be construed to affect in any manner the terms of 
the Restrictions Agreement described above, as the same may be amended.

-196-

Item H.2.j. 



 
Dated this ____ day of ________________, 2018. 
 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
By:  ___________________________  

James P. Brown, Mayor 
 
Attest:  ___________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC. City Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA   ) 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK   )ss. 
 

This record was acknowledged before me on this ___ day of ______________, 2018, by 
Jim Brown and Jacque Danielsen, as Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Notary Public in and for said State 

 

-197-

Item H.2.j. 



 



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Administration Division

  

  

 

 

  

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Brown & City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: August 15, 2018 

 SUBJECT: CDBG Rehabilitation Project - Change Order Request for 1622 Clay St. 
 

Cedar Falls is a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
funds that support several programs, including housing rehabilitations or housing 
repairs for income-qualifying residents.  
 
On May 21, 2018, City Council awarded a CDBG rehabilitation contract to Kirvan 
Enterprises, LLC for the property at 1622 Clay Street pursuant to Resolution #21,116 
(Contract #1-18-663). The original contract amount was for $15,950. City Staff and 
Kirvan Enterprises are requesting a change order to increase the contract by $2,000 to 
accommodate additional rehabilitation needs. 
 
Before a project is bid staff conducts an inspection of the property to determine the 
scope of work. Issues can arise as construction ensues that sometimes are difficult to 
know for a bid.  The requested $2,000 will be used to remediate a conflict between a 
bathroom window and the new bathtub. In summary the work includes removing the 
window, applying drywall to cover the opening, painting the bathroom, and applying 
sheathing and siding to the exterior to cover the opening. 
 
Current policy states that change orders over 10% of the original contract amount 
require approval from City Council. On August 8, 2018 Community Development staff 
approved a change order for an increase of $150 to replace a damaged screen door. 
Combined with this change, the proposed change order will increase the project cost to 
$18,100 which is an increase of 13.5% from the original contract amount. The new 
amount will remain below the $20,000 rehabilitation “hard cost” program limit per 
project. The change order will be paid by the City’s CDBG funds. 
 
The Community Development Department requests that City Council approve the 
$2,000 change order, increasing the contract amount to $18,100. If you have any 
questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact this office. 
 
XC: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

-199-

Item H.2.k. 



 



Line Item Scope of Work
Previous 

Cost
New Cost

1 Insulate attic above kitchen/laundry rooms to meet IECC of R49               $500  $500 

2 Replace 2’ 6” interior door and frame from kitchen to laundry room $500  $500 

3

Remove and replace existing bathtub in 2nd floor bathroom                 

a. Re‐pipe existing drain, waste, and vent plumbing as needed per code

b. Install new bathtub water supply valve and trim  

$1,900  $1,900 

4 Install new handrail in basement stairwell                                                      $250 $250 

5
LEAD HAZARD ITEM: Remove all loose paint on the base, casing and doors (both sides) 

in the 2nd floor hall. Wet sand the base, casing and doors and paint to cover.
$800 $800 

6
LEAD HAZARD ITEM: Apply ½” sheetrock to the ceiling in 2nd floor southeast bedroom/ 

living room.  Apply tape, compound and orange peel texture and paint to cover.
$1,000 $1,000 

7
LEAD HAZARD ITEM: Remove all loose paint on the walls and wood trim in the 2nd floor 

southeast bedroom/ living room and paint to cover.                                                                   
$500 $500 

8

Remove window that is below the upper bathtub flange and fill in cavity with insulation, 

apply new drywall to cover on entire side and front of tub, build in the bottom end of 

tub, scrape all peeling paint, tape, apply joint compound and paint entire bathroom 

N/A $1,500 

9
Apply sheathing to exterior wall to cover window opening and apply siding to cover as 

well as replace siding that is missing on same area to match existing 
NA $500 

8 10

Re‐roof entire house with new asphalt shingles and add additional box vents to roof as 

needed to meet code (detached garage not included for new shingles)   

a. Cut in new ridge venting and add two new box vents on lower portion of house above 

kitchen/laundry rooms           

$9,000 $9,000

9 11

Replace front steps on west side of house per code (no modifications to existing 

landing)

a. Install new handrails on each side of steps                           

$500 $500

10 12
Replace existing 2’ 6” side entry door and frame with new steel insulated door on south 

side of house, and install a new screen door* 
$1,150 $1,150

$16,100  $18,100 

Owner's Signature Date

Contractor's Signature Date

Official (City) Signature Date

Interior

Exterior

TOTAL

*Screen door installation was added by Change Order 1, increasing this line item's cost from $1,000 to $1,150

Yvonne Phillips

1622 Clay Street

Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Change Order 2 ‐ Changes shown in Red

-201-

Item H.2.k. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  
 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: August 16, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program: 1509 Franklin St 
 
The Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program was adopted by City 
Council on December 21, 2015.  The program offers a Forgivable Loan of up to $10,000 for 
exterior improvements to a residential rental property being purchased and converted to a 
single family owner occupied residence.  The goal is to improve and positively impact 
neighborhood character and encourage private improvements to rental properties converting to 
owner occupied. The concept of the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive 
Program was developed initially through the City established Rental Task Force. 
 
1509 Franklin Street was purchased by Stephanie Saak on July 20, 2018. The owner has 
submitted an application, attached, to be considered for the Rental to Single Family Owner 
Conversion Incentive Program. The property meets the requirements for the program: has 
been a rental for at least the past three years (since January 2012), is located in the R-2 
zoning district, falls within the program’s geographical boundaries, and is in a block with less 
than 75% rentals.  
 
Stephanie Saak is proposing to upgrade all the windows and storm doors at 1509 Franklin 
Street. Based on the submitted bid by City Builders the actual cost of the improvements listed 
is $10,366.00.  
 
The Community Development Department recommends adopting a resolution approving this 
property for a forgivable loan of up to $10,000.00 with the placement of a lien on the property 
for which 20% will be forgiven each year for five years with prorated payback if sold prior to the 
end of five years. Half of the forgivable loan will be paid upon City Council approval with the 
balance paid upon completion of the improvements, inspections by the City of the 
improvements, and verification of the actual costs of the improvements. This approval is 
subject to the property passing a major system evaluation (city inspection). 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

-203-

Item H.2.l. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument was drafted by:  Iris Lehmann, Community Development Department, 
City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 

 
 

LIEN NOTICE AND SPECIAL PROMISSORY NOTE 
 
 

Account No. 101-2245-44-89.79 Amount  $  10,000.00 
 
Date:    
 
RE: Property located at: 1509 Franklin Street  
and legally described as J R AND S CAMERONS SECOND ADD LOT 2 BLK 16 
 
 
(hereinafter the “Rehabilitated Property”). 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has advanced certain sums to the following owner or 
owners:  Stephanie L. Saak (hereinafter referred to as “Owner”), under the a Rental to Owner 
Conversion Program, which Program requires that an encumbrance be placed upon the above-
described Property, upon the terms and conditions set forth below.  
 
IT IS AGREED by the Owner as follows: 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Owner, jointly and severally promises to pay to the 
order of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or its successors or assigns (hereinafter the “City”), the 
sum of ten thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) (hereinafter the “Loan”), as follows: 
 

A. If the Property is sold or transferred within twelve (12) months of the date of this 
agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the Loan shall become due and 
payable to the City; 

 
B. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 13th and 

24th month from the date of this agreement, eighty (80) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City; 

 
C. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 25th and 

36th month from the date of this agreement, sixty (60) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
D. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 37th and 

48th month from the date of this agreement, forty (40) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
E. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 49th and 

60th month from the date of this agreement, twenty (20) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

-204-

Item H.2.l. 



 
F. After the sixtieth (60) month from the date of this instrument, the entire amount of 

the Loan is forgiven and no money will be due and payable to the City; 
 
G. Owner shall own and occupy the Property as the Owner’s principal residence at 

all times during the sixty (60) month period described herein. In the event the 
Owner fails to occupy the Rehabilitated Property as the Owner’s principal 
residence for any period of two (2) consecutive months, for any reason, or sells, 
transfers, rents, abandons, vacates or otherwise in any manner fails to occupy 
the Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, prior to the termination of the 
sixty (60) month period described herein, Owner shall immediately notify the City 
thereof. If during said sixty (60) month period, Owner shall violate the foregoing 
requirements, Owner shall immediately pay to the City the percentage of the 
unforgiven principal amount of the Loan, based upon the foregoing schedule, for 
the period between the date of this agreement and the date Owner fails to meet 
the foregoing requirements. 

 
H. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph G. above, if the failure of Owner to 

comply with the requirements of paragraph G. is due to medical circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of Owner as defined in this paragraph, the entire 
amount of the Loan shall be forgiven, and no money will be due and payable to 
the City. For purposes of this agreement, “medical circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the Owner” shall include, without limitation, the death of the 
Owner, and the relocation of the Owner if prescribed by a medical doctor for 
health or disability reasons, with said relocation being to another climate, to a 
nursing or other care facility, or to an apartment or other facility, if deemed by 
Owner’s medical doctor as more suitable for the health and care of the Owner. 

 
 
   
   
Stephanie L Saak   
OWNER  OWNER 
   

 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________, 2018, by Stephanie 
L. Saak. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

-205-

Item H.2.l. 



-206-

Item H.2.l. 



-207-

Item H.2.l. 



-208-

Item H.2.l. 



-209-

Item H.2.l. 



-210-

Item H.2.l. 



-211-

Item H.2.l. 



RENTAL T- SINGLE
F A M I L Y  O W N E R
CONVERSION INCENTIVE PROGRAM

MAKING A POSITIVE 
NEIGHBORHOOD IMPACT

220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph: (319) 273-8600 
Fax: (319) 268-5126

www.cedarfalls.com

For more information or to obtain an application,  
please contact the Cedar Falls Community  

Development Department.

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY 
REQUIREMENTS

	R1 and R2 zoned properties within the 
designated area on the boundary map that 
have been rentals for at least three years. 
Major household systems must be in good  
working order. City inspection required.

	Major household systems include electrical, 
plumbing, HVAC, and general overall 
property and structure condition. City  
will not provide funding if there are health  
or safety concerns with the major systems.  
(If major systems repairs are included as  
part of the project and will be financed by 
the homeowner, the project could be eligible 
for this program.)

	Date of application will be used to prioritize 
projects unless there are less applications 
than available funding.  The following 
preferences of project funding will be 
evaluated for use:

 A.  Structures built prior to 1980

 B.  Projects with two or more  
improvements that provide a  
larger neighborhood impact

 C.  Projects in blocks with less than  
50% rentals

	Improvements must be made on private 
property and completed within six months  
of closing. Repayment may be required if 
improvements have not been completed, 
have not started, or no significant progress 
has been made. 

-212-

Item
 H

.2.l. 



DETAILED PROGRAM 
COMPONENTS 

	Forgivable Loan Program with 20% forgiven 
each year with prorated payback if sold within 
five years

	A lien will be placed on the property

	No current income limits or matching  
fund requirements

	City funds to be used only for exterior 
improvements that create positive visual  
neighborhood impacts

	Maximum City funding of $10,000  
per project

	50% of City funding provided after closing, 
with approved application and cost estimate  
for improvements

	Balance paid after project completion, with  
all project receipts and City inspection

Dotted outline shows 
the initial project area

PROGRAM PROCESS

Submit application

Staff review (including interior  
and exterior site inspection)

Council review and approval

Owner closing on rental purchase

50% payment made  
based on cost estimate

Complete approved improvement project 
(balance of payment due)

GENERAL PROGRAM 
GUIDELINES

	Available to R1 and R2 zoned rental 
properties within the project area (see map)

	City staff will be involved prior to closing 
and can provide an indication of eligibility

	Post-Closing Program to ensure conversion 
of property to single-family ownership

	Discretionary program: City has no 
obligation to fund a request

The City of Cedar Falls has established 
a new Rental to Single Family Owner 
Conversion Incentive Program with a  

goal of promoting balance within  
certain neighborhoods.

SAMPLE EXTERIOR 
IMPROVEMENTS

	Siding, paint, roof, windows,  
and gutters

	Landscaping, clearing, cleanup  
(as part of other improvements)

	Removing areas of broken paving/gravel  
and replacing with hard surface

	Removal of deteriorated stoops/porches

	Other exterior improvements adding to the 
overall home and neighborhood character

-213-

Item
 H

.2.l. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor and Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I  

 DATE: August 15, 2018 

SUBJECT: Setting Public Hearing for revisions to Zoning Code Section 29-168 
Central Business District Overlay Zoning and Section 29-2 Definitions. 

 
The Central Business District Overlay provides guidance for building, site design 
standards, maintenance, and development within the district. City Staff has been 
working with Community Main Street (CMS) to clarify the review process and provide 
more objectivity to the design criteria of this section; specifically for new development 
and redevelopment. Establishing more objective standards in the overlay code will 
help both City Staff and the Planning & Zoning Commission be consistent in their 
reviews as well as create a vision of how the downtown should grow. Developers will 
also benefit by having a clear set of standards to follow. The proposed changes 
outline best practices of storefront design; many of which City Staff and CMS have 
already been holding developers accountable for but have never been clearly outlined 
in the code. The proposed code amendments aim to continue and strengthen the high 
level of development in the downtown. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the amendments at a public hearing on 
July 25, 2018 regular meeting and unanimously voted to forward the proposed changes 
to Council for approval. 
 
The Community Development Department requests that a public hearing be scheduled 
for September 4th, 2018 to consider the revisions to sections 29-168 and 29-2 of the 
Code of Ordinances pertaining to design guidelines in the Central Business District 
Overlay. If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to 
contact this office. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
 
 

-215-

Item H.2.m. 



 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF HEARING ON A 
PROPOSAL TO AMEND SECTION 29-168 AND SECTION 29-2 OF 

CHAPTER 29, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, PERTAINING TO THE DESIGN GUIDELINES IN THE 

CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT. 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received a 
recommendation from the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission to amend 
Section 29-168 and Section 29-2 of Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of said ordinance 

amendments; and  
 

WHEREAS, it is desired to submit the same for consideration to the City Council 
and to have a public hearing on the same as provided by law: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS that there shall be a public hearing on the request to amend 
Section 29-168 and Section 29-2 of Chapter 29, Zoning and that public hearing will be 
held on the 4th day of September, 2018, at 7:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers of the 
City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized and 
directed to publish notice of public hearing in the “Waterloo/Cedar Falls Courier”, said 
notice shall be published once, but not less than four (4) nor more than twenty (20) 
days before the date of hearing.  
 
       INTRODUCED AND APPROVED this _____ day of ___________________, 2018. 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-217-

Item H.2.m. 



 


	AGENDA
	A. Call to Order by the Mayor.
	B. Roll Call.
	C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 6, 2018.
	[180806MINUTES.doc]

	D. Agenda Revisions.
	E. Administration of Oath to Public Safety Officers and Reserve Officers.
	F. Special Order of Business:
	1. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel Project.
	[PH Library CoLab PSE Memo.docx]
	a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published August 10, 2018)
	b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk.
	c. Oral comments.

	2. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel Project.
	3. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Seal Coat Project.
	[1. 2018 Seal Coat - PSE.docx]
	[2-Cost Estimate.pdf]
	a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published August 10, 2018)
	b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk.
	c. Oral comments.

	4. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Seal Coat Project.

	G. Old Business:
	1. Pass Ordinance #2928, amending Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances relative to butchering and disposal of dead animals, upon its third & final consideration.
	[2928-Animals Ordinance.docx]

	2. Pass Ordinance #2929, amending Chapter 29, Zoning, and Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the City's floodplain regulations, upon its second consideration.
	[2929-Floodplain Ordinance.docx]

	3. Pass Ordinance #2930, rezoning property located generally on Lots 7 & 8 of the Midway Business Park Addition pursuant to provisions of a Zoning Agreement associated with Ordinance #2080, which placed said property in the R-4 Residential Zoning District, upon its second consideration.
	[2930-Rezoning Ordinance.doc]


	H. New Business:
	1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)  
	a. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of August 6, 2018 relative to the following items:
(1) Downtown ordinance revisions related to building design review. 
(2) Bills & Payrolls.
	[Comm of the Whole 08 06 18.doc]

	b. Receive and file the Administration Committee minutes of July 23, 2018. 
	[Admin Committee (Grievance Hearing) 07.23.18.doc]

	c. Receive and file the report of the July 23, 2018 Joint Meeting of the City Council & the Utilities Board of Trustees. 
	[7-23-18 Joint Meeting with CFU.docx]

	d. Receive and file the bid received for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9.
	[1. Bid Opening Memo.docx]
	[2-BID TAB - 2018 Sidewalk Assessment.pdf]

	e. Approve the following special event related requests: 
(1) Street closure, West 25th Street, August 26, 2018.
(2) Street closures, ARTapalooza, September 8, 2018.
(3) Street closures & parking variance, Friends of Western Home Communities Annual Breakfast & Family Fun, September 8, 2018.
(4) Street closure, West 25th Street, September 22, 2018.
(5) Street/parking lot closures & parking variances, UNI Homecoming activities, October 19-20, 2018.
	[0-Special Event Request Council Memo.doc]
	[1-Street Closure - W 25th - 8-25.pdf]
	[2-Street Closures - ARTapalooza.pdf]
	[3-Street Closures & Parking Variance - WHC.pdf]
	[4-Street Closure - W 25th - 9-22.pdf]
	[5-Street Closures & Parking Variances - Homecoming.pdf]

	f. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:
(1) Main Street Sweets, 210 Main Street, Class B native wine - renewal.
(2) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(3) The Other Place, 4214 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(4) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal.
(5) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(6) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class E liquor - change in ownership.
(7) Jorgensen Plaza (Table 1912, Diamond Event Center and Gilmore's Pub), 5307 Caraway Lane, Class C liquor - adding outdoor service.
(8) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor - temporary outdoor service. (August 25-26, 2018)
	[Liquor Beer 8-20-18.doc]


	2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 
	a. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Understanding with the City of Waterloo and Black Hawk County relative to the 2018-2019 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) funding for the Tri-County Drug Enforcement Task Force.
	[1-JAG grant memo to council 2018.doc]
	[2-wpdrecords@waterloopolice.com_20180809_132135.pdf]

	b. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a First Year Extension of an Agreement for Custodial Services with T & C Cleaning, Inc. relative to custodial services for city buildings for a period of September 1, 2018 through August 31, 2019.
	[Custodial Service Agrmt Ext.pdf]

	c. Resolution approving the partial release of retainage funds to K. Cunningham Construction Company, Inc. for the University Avenue Reconstruction Project, Phase I.
	[1 Partial Retainage Release2 - Memo.docx]
	[2-PR35-2018-0815-CF University Ph 1.pdf]

	d. Resolution approving and accepting the bid of Feldman Concrete, in the amount of $38,923.88, for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9. 
	[1. Bid Opening Memo.docx]
	[2-BID TAB - 2018 Sidewalk Assessment.pdf]

	e. Resolution approving final occupancy of the Aldrich Elementary School prior to the acceptance of the public improvements in McMahill First Addition.
	[Aldrich School Occupancy-McMahill First Addition.docx]

	f. Resolution approving and authorizing Change Order No. 1 to the contract with Iowa Bridge & Culvert, LC for the 2017 Levee/Floodwall System Improvements Project.
	[1. Levee - Change Order.docx]
	[2-0891_001.pdf]

	g. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Development Agreement with JDavis Properties, L.L.C., and approving an S-1 Zoning District site plan for the redevelopment of a building located at 6607 University Avenue.
	[1-CC staff report for 6607 university avenue 8-14-18.docx]
	[2-6607 university west facade improvements and agreement attachments.pdf]
	[3-resolution for the west improvement at 6607 university and developmental agreement on 8-20-18.docx]

	h. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment to Agreement for Private Development with BAJR Enterprises, L.L.C. relative to commencement and completion dates.
	[1_Council Memo-BAJR Enterprises, LLC Agreement Amendment 08-20-18.docx]
	[2_Agreement to Amend Development Agreement.doc]

	i. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to the City's Low Rent Housing Agency Administrative Plan.
	[1-Amendments to Admin Plan for Housing Choice Voucher Program.doc]
	[2-Resolution_Waiting List Management CC 8.20.18.docx]

	j. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment to Restrictions Agreement with Tindall Enterprises, LLC (f/n/a BlackHawk Hotel, L.L.C.), Eagle View Hospitality LC and Main Street Hotels LC relative to transfer of ownership, and approving and authorizing execution of a Subordination Agreement relative to a Forgivable Mortgage and Promissory Note, in conjunction with the Multi-Family (Rental) Unit Production - New Construction Program, Round 6.
	[Amend Restr & Subord Agrmt-ALL.pdf]

	k. Resolution approving and authorizing a change order to a Rehabilitation Contract with Kirvan Enterprises LLC relative to a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) housing rehabilitation project at 1622 Clay Street.
	[1-1622 Clay St - Council change order memo.docx]
	[2-Phillips Change Order 2.pdf]

	l. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located at 1509 Franklin Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program.
	[Lien & Note - 1509 Franklin - Incentive-ALL.pdf]

	m. Resolution setting September 4, 2018 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to design guidelines in the Central Business District Overlay Zoning District.
	[1. CBD Changes Setting PH Memo 8-14-18.docx]
	[2. resolution directing publication of notice on public hearing.doc]



	I. Allow Bills and Payroll.
	J. City Council Referrals.
	K. City Council Updates.
	L. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City business.)
	M. Adjournment.



